LIBRARY BOARD
Regular Meeting
Monday, June 22, 2020 — 4:30 P.M.
VIRTUAL - VIA ZOOM
AGENDA

Call to Order
1.1 Excused Absence
1.2 Welcome to Business Administrator

2. Declaration of Conflict of Interest
3. Approval of Agenda

4. Approval of the Minutes
4.1 May 19, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
4.2 Matters arising from the May 19, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

5. Consent Agenda

5.1 Invoices Paid May 2020

5.2 Friends Report — NONE

5.3 Correspondence
5.3.1 In-coming: Summer Experience Program from the Ministry of Heritage,
Sport, Tourism, and Culture Industries
5.3.2 Out-going: NONE

5.4 Information Items
5.4.1 SEP Grant

6 Items Removed from Consent

7 Financial Reports
7.1 May

8 Business Continuity
8.1 Curbside Service
8.2 Expanding Service

9 Facilities
9.1 AHU Project
9.2 Sump Pump Replacements
9.3 Window Caulking
9.4 Asbestos Abatement

10 New Business
11 Closed Session

Resolved that the members of the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board move into
Closed Session pursuant to the Public Libraries Act, Section 16.4 Closed Meetings,
as the subject matter being considered is: Labour relations or employee negotiations.
Further be it resolved that should the said Closed Session be adjourned, the Board
may reconvene in Closed Session to continue to discuss the same matter without the
need for further authorizing resolution. Be it further resolved that the following



individuals be permitted to attend: M. MacDonald, C. Rumas
12 Report of the Closed Session
13 Next Board Meeting July 20, 2020

14 Adjournment



Sault Ste. Marie Public Library
Library Board
REGULAR MEETING
Tuesday, May 19, 2020 — 4:30 P.M.
J Virtually — VIA ZOOM

0
| L)
W

Board Members Present:

Kevin Harrison Erin Ferlaino
Jami Van-Haaften Wayne Greco
Frances Ryan Sara McCleary
Luke Dufour Elspeth Belair

Library: Matthew MacDonald
Media: David Helwig

Absent: Ashlee Gerard

1. Call to Order
W. Greco called meeting to order at 4:39 p.m.
1.1 Excused Absence
No excused absences

2. Declaration of Conflict of Interest
No conflicts declared.

3. Approval of Agenda
MOTION:

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board approves the agenda of May 19, 2020
meeting as presented:

= Moved: F. Ryan Seconded: E. Ferlaino CARRIED

4. Approval of the Minutes
4.1 April 20, 2020 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
MOTION:

SSMPL Regular Board Meeting Page 1 May 19, 2020



The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board approves the minutes of the
April 20, 2020 meeting as presented:

Moved: F. Ryan Seconded: K. Harrison CARRIED

4.2 Matters arising from the April 20, 20202 Minutes

No matters arising from the minutes

5. Consent Agenda

51 Invoices Paid April 2020
5.2 Friends Report - NONE
5.3 Correspondence

5.3.1 In-coming: NONE

5.3.2 Out-going: NONE

5.4 Information Items
5.4.1 NONE

MOTION

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board approves the items removed from the
consent agenda of the May 19, 2020 meeting as presented:

Moved: E. Belair Seconded: L. Dufour CARRIED

6. ltems Removed from Consent

No items removed from consent

7. Financial Reports
7.1 March 2020

At the time of the meeting the financials were only reconciled up until the end
of February. For the first two months the Library has been on budget. Some
savings are expected due to unfilled vacancies in Administration. Other savings
may be realized in part-time savings however there has also been a decrease
of revenue increase of other expenditures due to the pandemic.

MOTION
The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board accept the Financial Report of
February 2020.
Moved: L. Dufour Seconded: E. Ferlaino CARRIED

SSMPL Regular Board Meeting Page 2 May 19, 2020



8. Business Continuity
8.1 Ongoing Operations

M. MacDonald reported on the various tasks that Full-Time staff during the
Library’s closure to the public to maintain online collections, do collection
development, readers’ advisory, engage the public and develop new virtual
programming including online story times.

8.2 Covid-19 Statistics

M. MacDonald reported on how some of the library’s statistics have been
affected by the pandemic. Most notably, online collections use such as for
Overdrive, have significantly increased. The Library has also been able to
register 290 new cards remotely. Social media impressions were up slightly
over the same time period in the previous year.

8.3 Recovery

M. MacDonald informed the Board that the Library according to the Ontario
Government, libraries would be permitted to begin curbside service as soon as
May 19, 2020. M. MacDonald presented a 4 phase plan for reopening the
Library and recommend that the Library begin curbside service on Monday May
25, 2020. The Board agreed that the CEO and Board Chair could jointly decide
to proceed with the next steps in the plan and/or expand some Library services
without further need of resolution of the Board.

MOTION

Resolved that the James L. Mcintyre Centennial Library reopen to the public
for curbside service beginning Monday May 25, 2020.

Further, resolved that the Board Chair and CEO may jointly reopen the North
Branch with no need of further resolution of the Board, after the service has
been assessed at the other location and is deemed ready to be expanded.

Further, resolved that the Board Chair and CEO may jointly reopen one or both
locations for in-person service following government mandates, taking also into
consideration the local situation of the virus, and the Library’s preparedness to
safely do so, with no need of further resolution of the Board.

Moved By: F. Ryan Seconded: K. Harrison CARRIED

8.4 Operating Hours

The Board agreed with the operating hours recommended by Management team for
each phase of the Library’'s reopening. The Board also agreed that the CEO and
Board Chair can jointly decide to adjust the hours as needed.

SSMPL Regular Board Meeting Page 3 May 19, 2020



James L. Mcintyre Centennial Library during Phase 1 — Curbside Service.

Centennial Library

Monday 10 amto 5 pm
Tuesday 10 amto 5 pm
Wednesday 10 amto 5 pm
Thursday 10 amto 5 pm
Friday 10 amto 5 pm
Saturday 10 amto 1 pm
Sunday Closed

Phase 2 will be a similar opening of the North Branch with the same operational
hours.

Phase 3 recommended operational hours are as follows:

Centennial Library North Branch

Monday 9amto 6 pm 10 amto 6 pm
Tuesday 9 amto 6 pm 10 amto 6 pm
Wednesday 9amto 6 pm 10 amto 6 pm
Thursday 9amto 6 pm 10 amto 6 pm
Friday 10 amto 5 pm 10 amto 5 pm
Saturday 10 amto 5 pm 10 pmto 5 pm
Sunday Closed Closed

Phase 4 will be a return to regular hours.

8.4 Budgetary Impact of Covid-19

M. MacDonald reported on some of the budgetary impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic
including lost revenue, increased/new expenditures and decreased expenses.

Lost Revenue

Fines and Fees $395/week
Friends Bookstore $735/week
Donations $270/week
Meeting Room Rentals $140/week
Copy Services $218/week
Misc. Revenue $429/week
Increased Expenses

Sneeze Guards $3,639
Enhanced Custodial Services $504/week
PPE and Additional Custodial Supplies (to be replaced as needed) $924
Public Sanitation Stations $488
Signage $2,091
Replacement Chairs for Shared Workstations $2,424

SSMPL Regular Board Meeting Page 4 May 19, 2020



Decreased Expenses
Part-time Clerk/Technician Salaries* $5,997/week
Page Salaries* $2,478/week

*Inclusive of benefits

9. Facilities
9.1 AHU Project

The AHU project is continuing. The AHU 2 replacement in the
penthouse is nearing completion. The replacement of AHU 3 in the
lower lobby mechanical room has just begun.

9.2 Sump Pump Project

Phases 1 and 2 have been completed. Next will be the replacement of
the elevator’'s sump pump.

10. New Business

10.1 Board training — J. Van Haaften has attended several Board training
sessions and has provided the Board shared some of theinformation.

Ontario's accessibility training (https://www.accessforward.ca/). This also
includes training for the Ontario Human Rights Code
(https://www.accessforward.ca/ohrc).

CITIES IN THE TIME OF COVID - How will the role of public libraries be
changed?

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=V1HaDV9cTvU

W. Greco asked the Board to email him and the CEO about how they would
like to receive information from Board members (eg. New Business of the
Agenda, informal emails).

11. Closed Session
MOTION

The members of the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board move into Closed
Session pursuant to the Public Libraries Act, Section 16.4 Closed Meetings, as
the subject matter being considered is: Labour relations or employee negotiations;
Personal matters about an identifiable individual. Further be it resolved that
should the said Closed Session be adjourned, the Board may reconvene in
Closed Session to continue to discuss the same matter without the need for

SSMPL Regular Board Meeting Page 5 May 19, 2020


https://www.accessforward.ca/).
https://www.accessforward.ca/ohrc).
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=V1HaDV9cTvU

further authorizing resolution. Be it further resolved that the following person(s)
be permitted to attend: M. MacDonald.

Moved: L. Dufour Seconded: F. Ryan CARRIED

Entered Closed Session at 5:42 p.m.
Returned to Open Session at 6:08 p.m.

12. Report of the Closed Session
MOTION

Resolved that the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board received the report of
the Closed Session of the May 19, 2020 meeting.

Moved:E. Ferlaino Seconded: S. McCleary CARRIED

13. Board Meeting
14.1  Next Meeting June 22, 2020

14. Adjournment
MOTION

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board move to adjourn the May 19, 2020
meeting at 6:10 p.m.

Moved: J. Van Haaften Seconded: L. Dufour CARRIED

Chairperson, Library Board

SSMPL Regular Board Meeting Page 6 May 19, 2020



May 7/2020 $6,224.51
May 14/2020 $20,621.17
May 21/20 $98,385.96
May 28/20 $6,683.56
May 20/20 VISA $910.98
$132,826.18

Moved by:

Seconded by:

That the cheques for the month of May 2020, which include wages and benefits
and RBC Visain  the amount of $132,826.18 be confirmed paid.

Carried/Denied

CHAIR - LIBRARY BOARD



Ministry of Heritage, Sport, Tourism Ministére des Industries du Patrimoine, du Sport,
and Culture Industries du Tourisme et de la Culture

L]
Assistant Deputy Minister Sous-ministre adjoint o nta rl o @
Heritage, Tourism and Culture Division Division du patrimoine, du tourisme et de la culture
401 Bay Street, Suite 1800 401 rue Bay, bureau 1800
Toronto ON M7A 0A7 Toronto ON M7A 0A7
Tel.: 416 314-7265 Tél. : 416 314-7265
Fax: 416 212-1802 Téléc. : 416 212-1802
May 28, 2020

Matthew MacDonald

Acting CEO/Director of Public Libraries
Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board
50 East Street

Sault Ste. Marie, ON P6C 3C3
m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca

Dear Mr. MacDonald:

Re:

Case Number: 2020-02-1-1431446934
Summer Experience Program 2020

| am pleased to inform you that your organization has been approved for a Summer Experience
Program grant to hire one Programming Coordinator for the summer of 2020. You will be
receiving a grant in the amount of $3,658 in one instalment.

By signing and submitting the Ministry’s application form, you agreed to the general terms and
conditions of this grant. As an employer, you are required to adhere to the Employment
Standards Act, 2000, including paying no less than the minimum wage. For requirements
around hiring your summer student(s) and reporting on the grant, please refer to the Summer
Experience Program Guidelines.

In response to the COVID-19 situation, the Ministry has introduced changes to the 2020
Summer Experience Program in order to respond to the needs of employers and students:

Part-time employment: Your organization may offer part-time employment contracts where
students may work fewer than 36.25 hours per week. Previously, all SEP-funded
employment had to be full time (a minimum of 36.25 hours per week at 7.25 hours per day).
Despite this, the student must still work a total of 246.5 hours during the term of employment
in order for you to remain eligible for the approved grant amount. If the student does not
work a total of 246.5 hours during the employment period, you must refund the outstanding
portion of the approved grant amount to the Ministry.

Employment period: Your organization may offer employment contracts between May 1,
2020 and December 31, 2020. Previously, all SEP-funded positions had to be completed no
later than September 7, 2020. You may offer part-time employment contracts to students
who want to work during the academic year. Should you choose to extend the employment
period to December 31, 2020, your organization’s final report is due to the Ministry by
January 15, 2021.




In the current context of COVID-19, employers are responsible for becoming and remaining
informed of municipal, provincial and federal public health information. Employers of Summer
Experience Program students must abide by any orders, including provincial and municipal
orders, applicable to them and relevant public health recommendations (e.g. physical
distancing).

Patricia Lofstrom, Regional Development Advisor assigned to your file will contact you soon to
determine the status of your project, including any changes to it or the intended utilization of
funding. Any changes will have to be requested by submitting a change request form, which
Patricia can discuss with you. Patricia can be reached at (705) 254-8966 or by e-mail at
Patricia.Lofstrom@ontario.ca.

Congratulations and best wishes for success.

With kind regards,

R /B’WW»JQ&

Kevin Finnerty
Assistant Deputy Minister
Heritage, Tourism and Culture Division



. I. Sault Ste. Marie
W’WW Public Library

"One stop....endless possibilities"

AGENDA ITEM: 5.4

TO: LIBRARY BOARD

FROM: MATTHEW MACDONALD, CEO
SUBJECT: INFORMATION ITEMS
DATE: JUNE 22, 2020

5.4.1 SEP GRANT

The Library was successful in its application for a Summer Experience Grant through the
Ministry of Heritage, Sport, Tourism and Culture. Unfortunately the Library had to withdraw its
application and decline the funding. The grant was for $3,658 and was to be used a summer
student who would have assisted with the children’s summer programming at the Library. Due
to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Library is unable to offer in-person programming now and in the
near future. Attempts to change the position, which is permitted under the grant’s new
guidelines, would bring the Library into conflict with CUPE 67 — Library Group Part-Time Union,
whose members are currently on Declared Emergency Leave.

Respectfully submitted,
Matthew MacDonald, Chief Executive Officer



SSM LIBRARY
Summary of All Units

For the Five Months Ending Sunday, May 31, 2020

Percentage

Department Actual Budget to Date
REVENUE
Grants ($2,111,472.00) ($3,231,591.00) 65%
Fines (3,850.25) ($20,500.00) 19%
Concessions 0%
Sales (10,587.64) ($52,250.00) 20%
Donations (5,556.41) ($43,331.00) 13%
Other income (50,188.89) ($36,800.00) 136%
Change in future employee benefits 0%
Surplus, prior year 0%
(2,181,655.19) ($3,384,472.00) 64%
EXPENDITURES
Salaries and benefits 895,273.63 $2,521,920.00 35%
Future employee benefits 0%
Books and periodicals 65,274.94 $203,881.00 32%
Utilities 34,124.14 $94,000.00 36%
Office expenditures 42,191.89 $134,200.00 31%
Operating expenditures 158,309.08 $370,971.00 43%
Equipment purchases 35,344 .41 $59,500.00 59%
Depreciation 0%
Default 0%
1,230,518.09 $3,384,472.00 36%
(Surplus)/Deficit (951,137.10) $0.00 0%



SSM LIBRARY
LIBRARY ADMINISTRATION

For the Five Months Ending Sunday, May 31, 2020

Percentage

Department Actual Budget to Date

REVENUE
Grants ($2,111,472.00) ($3,231,591.00) 65%
Fines
Concessions
Sales (7,312.36) ($31,500.00) 23%
Donations (5,556.41) ($43,331.00) 13%
Other income (47,168.91) ($28,000.00) 168%
Change in future employee benefits
Surplus, prior year

(2,171,509.68) ($3,334,422.00) 65%
EXPENDITURES
Salaries and benefits 273,975.94 $759,938.00 36%
Future employee benefits
Books and periodicals $1,000.00 0%
Utilities
Office expenditures 27,146.61 $94,900.00 29%
Operating expenditures 2,475.70 $18,777.00 13%
Equipment purchases 35,344 .41 $55,000.00 64%
Depreciation
Default

338,942.66 $929,615.00 36%

(Surplus)/Deficit (1,832,567.02) ($2,404,807.00) 76%



SSM LIBRARY
LIBRARY MAIN BRANCH
For the Five Months Ending Sunday, May 31, 2020

Percentage

Department Actual Budget to Date
REVENUE
Grants
Fines (3,191.16) ($18,000.00) 18%
Concessions
Sales (2,838.39) ($18,900.00) 15%
Donations
Other income (2,164.62) ($6,000.00) 36%

Change in future employee benefits
Surplus, prior year

(8,194.17) ($42,900.00) 19%

EXPENDITURES
Salaries and benefits 517,321.71 $1,474,091.00 35%
Future employee benefits
Books and periodicals 47,747.29 $134,550.00 35%
Utilities 34,124.14 $94,000.00 36%
Office expenditures 14,368.51 $36,600.00 39%
Operating expenditures 46,561.64 $142,100.00 33%
Equipment purchases $2,500.00 0%
Depreciation
Default

660,123.29 $1,883,841.00 35%

(Surplus)/Deficit 651,929.12 $1,840,941.00 35%



SSM LIBRARY
LIBRARY KORAH BRANCH
For the Five Months Ending Sunday, May 31, 2020

Department Actual

REVENUE

Grants

Fines

Concessions

Sales

Donations

Other income

Change in future employee benefits
Surplus, prior year

Budget

Percentage

to Date

$0.00

0%

EXPENDITURES

Salaries and benefits

Future employee benefits

Books and periodicals

Utilities

Office expenditures 207.08
Operating expenditures

Equipment purchases

Depreciation

Default

0%

207.08

$0.00

0%

(Surplus)/Deficit 207.08

$0.00

0%



SSM LIBRARY
LIBRARY NORTH BRANCH

For the Five Months Ending Sunday, May 31, 2020

Percentage

Department Actual Budget to Date
REVENUE
Grants
Fines (659.09) ($2,500.00) 26%
Concessions
Sales (436.89) ($1,850.00) 24%
Donations
Other income (855.36) ($2,800.00) 31%
Change in future employee benefits
Surplus, prior year
(1,951.34) ($7,150.00) 27%

EXPENDITURES
Salaries and benefits 103,975.98 $287,891.00 36%
Future employee benefits
Books and periodicals 17,527 .65 $68,331.00 26%
Utilities
Office expenditures 469.69 $2,700.00 17%
Operating expenditures 109,610.17 $208,094.00 53%
Equipment purchases $2,000.00 0%
Depreciation
Default

231,583.49 $569,016.00 41%
(Surplus)/Deficit 229,632.15 $561,866.00 1%



SSM LIBRARY

LIBRARY CONCESSION
For the Five Months Ending Sunday, May 31, 2020

Department Actual

Budget

Percentage
to Date

REVENUE

Grants

Fines

Concessions

Sales

Donations

Other income

Change in future employee benefits
Surplus, prior year

$0.00

0%

EXPENDITURES

Salaries and benefits

Future employee benefits

Books and periodicals

Utilities

Office expenditures

Operating expenditures (338.43)
Equipment purchases

Depreciation

Default

$2,000.00

(17%)

(338.43)

$2,000.00

(17%)

(Surplus)/Deficit (338.43)

$2,000.00

(17%)



. I. Sault Ste. Marie
W’W\V Public Library

"One stop....endless possibilities"

AGENDA ITEM: 8

TO: LIBRARY BOARD

FROM: MATTHEW MACDONALD, CEO
SUBJECT: BUSINESS CONTINUITY
DATE: JUNE 22, 2020

PURPOSE

To update the Board on the continuing operations of the Library during the COVID-19
pandemic, and plans to return regular business.

8.1 CURBSIDE SERVICE

There has been much positive feedback about the Library’s curbside service. The average
number of holds during the week (Mon.-Fri.) is 54. The average for Saturday has been about
20. No real pattern has presented itself as to the most busy days and times.

The Reference staff have been receiving between 35 to 50 questions daily with a majority being
asked by seniors. Saturdays tend to be quieter while Mondays seem to be the busiest with 125
questions being asked in a single day.

The Library has not yet reached the threshold were it would be feasible to open a second pick
up location at the North Branch.

8.2 EXPANDING SERVICE

The Government of Ontario announced that Stage 2 for Reopening Ontario would begin June
12, 2020. Algoma region was one of the first areas to move onto Stage 2. Within the “A
Framework for Reopening our Province: Stage 2" https://www.ontario.ca/page/framework-
reopening-our-province-stage-2 are the following restrictions for libraries:



https://www.ontario.ca/page/framework-

Libraries

All libraries can reopen with limited on-site services, such as computer
access and contactless book pickup and drop-off.

e Patrons are not permitted to handle books or materials on shelves.

o Libraries should operate in adherence with public health guidelines
on physical distancing, capacity and hygiene procedures (e.g.,
disinfecting returns and high-touch areas like computers).

These changes from Stage 1 would allow the public into libraries and for libraries to offer
computer services. Unfortunately, our Library is not currently set-up to safely allow for the use of
public computers. Staff are investigating ways that this might be done locally without putting
staff or the public at risk. In the meantime, the Library will continue with its curbside service as
is.

Respectfully submitted,
Matthew MacDonald, CEO

Page 2 of 2



. I. Sault Ste. Marie
W’W\W Public Library

"One stop....endless possibilities"

AGENDA ITEM: 9

TO: LIBRARY BOARD

FROM: MATTHEW MACDONALD, CEO
SUBJECT: FACILITIES

DATE: JUNE 22, 2020

PURPOSE

To update the Board on facility improvements at the James L. Mcintyre Centennial Library.

9.1 AHU PROJEC

The replacement of AHU 2 located in the penthouse is nearly complete. The original AHU 3,
located in the lower lobby, has been dismantled and removed. The new AHU 3 has been
brought in and is being installed. This new unit will have the added benefit of being much
quieter, reducing the noise pollution within the lobby.

9.2 SUMP PUMP PROJECT

Two sump pit pumps located in the James L. Mcintyre Centennial Library’s lower lobby
mechanical room are reaching the end of their life expectancy and will be required to be
replaced soon. These pumps collect all of the water from the buildings’ weeping tiles and some
other storm drainage. This is part of the ongoing project to reduce the risk of flooding at this
location. Should the pumps fail, a great amount of damage may be caused during the next
heavy rainfall.

Normech Engineering Inc., which had been engaged to assist in the project, created a Request
For Proposal (RFP). Three companies responded to the RFP. As the project cost will exceed
$10,000 the Board must approve the expense in accordance with 200-01 Purchasing and
Procurement Policy before the project can proceed. The lowest bid for the RFP was made by
DNM Plumbing and Heating Limited.



Given the cost of the project it is recommended that Board request City Council for use of the
Library's Capital Reserve to complete the project.
MOTION

Resolved that the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board request from City Council, approval of
the use of the Library’s Capital Reserve in the amount of up to $15,000, for replacement of
sump pit pumps and controls at the James L. McIntyre Centennial Library, located at 50 East St,
Sault Ste. Marie, ON.

Moved by: Seconded:

9.3 WINDOW CAULKING

As part of the City’s asset management plan, the James L. Mcintyre Centennial Library’s
windows and doors are going to receive new caulking. The city set aside funds for this work.
The library building has been moved up on the City’s list because City Staff are trying get to
buildings that ordinarily would be busy with customers but now have reduced traffic because of
the pandemic.

9.4 ASBESTOS ABATEMENT

Asbestos abatement have been a long standing issue at the James L. McIntyre Centennial
Library. There are many areas of the building which contain asbestos in the ceilings, along
pipes, and possibly in floor tiles. These areas have all been identified and are regularly
inspected for health risks.

Of greatest concern is what is referred to as the “four corners.” These are lower ceilings in the
four corners of the upper level public area. Though the ceilings are considered safe so long as
they are left undisturbed, they are within arm’s reach of most patrons, and have been
vandalized in the past.

The Library has prepared a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the Board’s approval for engineering
services that will oversee the project to, at minimum, do asbestos abatement of the “four
corners,” as well as address asbestos in other areas of the Library. Asbestos removal and
abatement will incur a significant cost. The Board will be required to ask City Council for
permission to access the Library’s Capital reserve in order to pay these costs. It is
recommended at the Board pass a motion to request $250,000 from the capital reserve for this
project.

MOTION
Resolved that the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board approve the Request for Proposal
#2020-001 Engineering Services for Asbestos Removal and Abatement as presented/amended.

Moved by: Seconded:

Page 2 of 3



MOTION

Resolved that the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board request from City Council, approval of
the use of the Library’s Capital Reserve in the amount of up to $250,000, for engineering
services and the removal and abatement of asbestos at the James L. Mcintyre Centennial
Library, located at 50 East St, Sault Ste. Marie, ON.

Moved by: Seconded:

Respectfully submitted,
Matthew MacDonald, CEO

Page 3 of 3



‘ I‘ Sault Ste. Marie
WW Public Library
www.ssmpl.ca
"One stop....endless possibilities"

THE SAULT STE. MARIE PUBLIC LIBRARY

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

ENGINEERING SERVICES — ASBESTOS REMOVAL AND ABATEMENT
JAMES L. MCINTYRE CENTENNIAL LIBRARY

Chief Executive Officer June 22, 2020

Sault Ste. Marie Public Library



THE SAULT STE. MARIE PUBLIC LIBRARY
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL —-#2020-001
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR ASBESTOS REMOVAL AND ABATEMENT

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library is requesting proposals from Vendors of Record (VOR)
within the Buildings and Architectural Category to provide engineering services
associated with asbestos removal and abatement within the James L. Mcintyre
Centennial Library located at 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, ON.

The purpose of this request is to prompt a response from Proponents actively engaged
in the provision of building and architectural engineering services.

If you are in a position to submit a Proposal, the completed Form of Proposal and all
required attachments and schedules, must be returned in a sealed envelope, to the
Administrative Office, Sault Ste. Marie Public Library 50 East Street, Sault Ste.
Marie, Ontario P6A 3C3 prior to the closing date. You are encouraged to make a full
copy of the submitted documents for your file.

During the period for Proposal preparation, any questions concerning the requirements
or intent of the statements contained herein should be directed to Mr. Matthew
MacDonald, Chief Executive Officer, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario P6A
3C3 at 705-759-5246 or via email m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca.

This Request for Proposal is advertised with a closing date of 12:00 pm, local time,
Friday July 17, 2020.

We look forward to your response.

Sincerely,
Matthew MacDonald, B.A., M.L.I1.S.
Chief Executive Officer


mailto:m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca.

THE SAULT STE. MARIE PUBLIC LIBRARY
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR ASBESTOS REMOVAL AND ABATEMENT

Sealed proposals plainly marked as to contents, will be received at the Front Entrance
of Sault Ste. Marie Public Library 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario P6A 3C3
during regular operating hours until:

12:00 O'CLOCK NOON, LOCAL TIME (EASTERN) Friday JULY 17, 2020
for architectural/engineering drawings and plans for:

ASBESTOS REMOVAL AND ABATEMENT
50 East St., SAULT STE. MARIE, ONTARIO P6A 3C3

Instructions to bidders, Request for Proposal forms, specifications, drawings and
proposal envelopes may be obtained from the CEO, via email at
m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca.

A Site Inspection accompanied by Mr. Matthew MacDonald, (phone) 705-759-
5246, (email) m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca, or his designate, is recommended prior to
submitting a Proposal for supply of this equipment.

The lowest or any Proposal will not necessarily be accepted.

Matthew MacDonald,
Chief Executive Officer


mailto:m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca.
mailto:m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca,

INDEX

1) INFORMATION TO PROPONENTS

2) FORM OF PROPOSAL

3) TERMS OF REFERENCE

3) SPECIFICATIONS & DRAWINGS



SECTION 1

INFORMATION TO
PROPONENTS



INFORMATION TO PROPONENTS
ENGINEERING SERVICES for JAMES L. MCINTYRE CENTENNIAL LIBRARY

1. Delivery and Opening of Proposals

Sealed Proposals in an envelope or package visibly marked on the outside with the Name of Proponent,
the Proposal Name & File Number, and the Proposal Closing Date & Time will be received by the CEO,
James L. Mclintyre Centennial Library, 50 East St, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario, until 12:00 o'clock noon,
local time, Friday July 17, 2020. Late Proposals will not be accepted and will be returned unopened.

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals. The lowest or any
Proposal will not necessarily be accepted.

2. Errors, Omissions, Clarifications

All questions and requests for clarification, including Terms of Reference and technical information,
relating to the Request for Proposal process and/or identification of any errors or omissions in the
Request for Proposal documents shall be directed to Mr. Matthew MacDonald, CEO, (phone) 705-759-
5246, (email) m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca.

The CEO may, at his sole discretion, issue a written addendum. The CEO will not make oral
interpretations or clarifications, as to the meaning of the Proposal documents.

3. Informal Proposals

Proposals shall conform to the terms and conditions set out herein. Proposals which are incomplete,
conditional, or obscure, or which contain additions not called for, erasures, alterations, or irregularities of
any kind, may be rejected as informal. The Form of Proposal must be legibly signed in ink by an
authorized officer of the firm.

4. Ability and Experience of Proponents
No Proposal will be considered from any Proponent unless known to have a background of experience in
a related enterprise of a character similar to that covered by this document.

5. Conditions and Requirements for Performance — Recommended Site Inspection

The Proponent is required to submit their Proposal upon the express conditions that they shall satisfy
themselves by personal examination of the areas proposed for the removal and/or abatement of
asbestos, as to the actual conditions of each location.

A Site Inspection accompanied by Matthew MacDonald, CEO, (phone) 705-759-5246, (email)
m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca, or his designate, is recommended prior to submitting a Proposal
for design and supply of furniture. No allowance will be made for any issues, including additional
costs, which may arise in the absence of the Site Inspection as recommended.

Each Proponent by careful examination of the RFP documents and any subsequent addenda shall satisfy
themselves as to the nature of the problem areas as well as all conditions which might affect the
execution of the contract, and will make the necessary changes to their proposal.

6. Agreement

The Proponent agrees that the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library’s Purchase Order issued to the
successful Proponent, along with the Proposal Document submitted in response to, and in
compliance with, the RFP shall constitute the basis of the Agreement. If any other document is
required, Proponents shall clearly identify this requirement in the Proposal as submitted. It is
preferred that a sample document be included with the Proposal for review. In the absence of


mailto:m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca.
mailto:m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca,

notification from the Proponent of the requirement for additional documents, it shall be deemed
that the documentation outlined in the first sentence of this paragraph shall constitute the whole
of the agreement.

7. Proposal Left Open
The Proponent shall keep their Proposal open for acceptance for ninety (90) days after the closing date.

8. Right to Accept or Reject Proposals

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals or to accept any
Proposal should it be deemed in the interests of the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library to do so and if only
one Proposal is received, the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library reserves the right to reject it.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a preferred Proposal does not exactly and entirely meet
the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library’s requirements, the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library reserves the right to
enter into negotiations with the selected Proponent to arrive at a mutually satisfactory arrangement with
respect to any modifications to the Proposal.

9. Schedule

A- Release of RFP June 23, 2020

B- Submission of Proposal July 17, 2020

C- Proposal Evaluation July 2020

D- Recommendation of Award July 2020

E- Award of Contract July 2020

F- Plans and Drawings Completed August 2020

H — RFP Released for Contractors August/September

| — Construction Work Completed By December 31, 2020

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library reserves the right to alter the scheduling of items “C” to “I”.

10. Proposal Copies

Three (3) complete sets of the Proposal documents are to be submitted— one (1) marked as “ Original”
and two (2) sets marked as “Copy”. The “Form of Proposal” included with the Proposal documents
marked “Original” must bear original signatures in ink to qualify.

Proponents are asked to designate one contact person to whom any additional information
deemed to be relevant to the Proposal may be communicated.

11. Indemnity

The successful Proponent shall indemnify the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library from all damage or expense
for actual or alleged trademark, patent or copyright infringements. The successful Proponent will
indemnify and save harmless the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library against and from all actions, causes of
action, interest, claims, demands, costs, damages, expenses or loss which the Sault Ste. Marie Public
Library may bear, suffer, incur, become liable for or be put to by reason of any damage to property or
injury or death to persons by reason of, arising out of or in consequence of breach, violation of non-
performance by the successful Proponent of any provision of the agreement, or by reason of or arising
out of the use of the premises or in connection with the work covered by this contract, or by reason of or
arising out of any act, neglect or default by the successful Proponent or any of its agents or employees or
any other person or persons, in, on, or about the premises. And the Proponent covenants that the
indemnity herein contained shall extend to all claims, loss, cost and damages by reason of or arising out
of removal of asbestos, asbestos abatement, and/or restoration of areas where asbestos was located, in
connection with this Agreement by the Proponent, its servants or agents, whether or not these have been
approved by the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library, its servants or agents. The rights to indemnity contained
in this paragraph shall survive any termination of this agreement, anything in this agreement to the
contrary notwithstanding.



The Proponent further covenants that the indemnity herein contained shall extend to all claims, loss, cost
and damages by reason of or arising out of removal of asbestos, asbestos abatement, and/or restoration
of areas where asbestos was located, in connection with this Agreement by the Proponent, its servants or
agents, whether or not these have been approved by the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library, its servants or
agents.

The rights to indemnity contained in this paragraph shall survive any termination of this agreement,
anything in this agreement to the contrary notwithstanding.

12. Insurance Policy & Certificate

The successful Proponent will indemnify and save harmless the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library of any
action arising out of the course of this agreement and will provide a Certificate of Insurance certifying
Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance for a minimum of $2,000,000.00 per occurrence, prior to
the commencement of the contract. The successful Proponent shall maintain such insurance as will
protect the Proponent and the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library from all claims for damage or loss, or
personal and bodily injury, including death, and from all claims of property damage on an occurrence
basis which may arise from their operation under this contract.

The insurance shall be Comprehensive Liability Insurance, including Product and Completed Operations
Liability, Contractual Liability, Owners and/or Contractors Protective Liability, Contingent Employers
Liability, and shall contain a Cross Liability Clause protecting the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library as if
separately insured. The insurance shall have a limit of not less than $2,000,000.00 inclusive for any one
occurrence. The deductible amount or amounts in any insurance policy required by the Sault Ste.

Marie Public Library pursuant to this contract shall be subject to the approval of the Sault Ste. Marie
Public Library. In the event that the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library does not accept the deductible amount
as proposed by the Contractor, the Contractor shall provide insurance coverage with a deductible amount
acceptable to the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library.

13. Contractor Pre-Qualification Program

The successful Proponent shall be responsible for the supervision of the project. Personal
Protective Equipment (PPE) must be used by its employees as required to perform the required
work, and be maintained in a safe working condition. The successful Proponent is responsible for
the supply of all safety equipment required by its employees.

The successful Proponent and all Contractors are required to comply with the requirements of the
City of Sault Ste. Marie’s Contractor Pre-Qualification Program prior to the start of onsite work on
this Contract. These requirements include but are not limited to WSIB Coverage, Liability
Insurance Coverage, Accessibility Training, and Safe Work Practices. Details regarding
compliance with this requirement may be obtained by contacting Aldo lacoe,

Health & Safety Coordinator, telephone 705-759-5367 or by email to a.iacoe@cityssm.on.ca.

Responsibility for compliance with this requirement by any Subcontractor is the responsibility of
the successful Proponent.

14. Subletting

The successful Proponent shall keep the work under their personal control, and shall not assign, transfer
or sublet any portion without first obtaining the written consent of the CEO, or his designate. The consent
of the CEO of any such assignment, transfer or subletting, shall not, however, relieve the successful
Proponent of any responsibility for the proper commencement, execution and completion of the work
according to the terms of the contract, and the successful Proponent shall, either in person or through an
accredited agent, receive all notices, communications, orders, instructions or legal service as if the
Proponent were performing the work with their own plant and employees.


mailto:a.iacoe@cityssm.on.ca.

15. Interviews

Proponents may be required to attend an interview to detail features of the planned asbestos removal and
abatement and restoration. Any costs associated with attendance are the responsibility of the Proponent
(see Paragraph 16 below).

16. Incurred Costs

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library will not be liable nor reimburse any Proponent for costs incurred in the
preparation of Proposals, inspections, demonstrations, or any other services that may be required as part
of the evaluation process. Whenever possible, at the sole determination of the Sault Ste. Marie
Public Library, additional information and/or clarifications will be obtained by telephone or other
electronic means.

17. Alterations to Documents

No electronic reproduction or alteration of the original document will be permitted under any
circumstance. The Proponent shall not change the wording of the Proposal after submission; and no
words or comments shall be added to the general conditions or detailed specifications unless requested
by the CEO for the purpose of clarification.

18. Confidentiality & Post-Award Comment

No Proponent shall have the right to review or receive any information with respect to a Proposal,
documentation, or information submitted by any other Proponent. The content of the Proposal, and all
documentation, and information shall be held in confidence by the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library, subject
only to the provision of freedom of information and privacy legislation, including without limitation, the
Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. Post-Award Comment by the Sault Ste.
Marie Public Library regarding this Request for Proposal will be limited to written notification to all
Proponents of the successful Proponent’s name and address only. In submitting a Proposal, Proponents
acknowledge and agree to this provision.

19. Municipal Freedom of Information & Protection of Privacy Act

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library is governed by the provisions of the Municipal Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Act. The Act gives persons a right of access to information held by the library.
The right of access is subject to the exemptions contained in the Act.



SECTION 2

FORM OF PROPOSAL



FORM OF PROPOSAL
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR ASBESTOS REMOVAL AND ABATEMENT

Mr. Wayne Greco, Chair

& Members of the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library Board
50 East Street

Sault Ste. Marie, ON P6A 3C3

I/We the undersigned, hereby submit the attached Proposal to satisfy the requirements laid out by the
Sault Ste. Marie Public Library.

I/We have reviewed and understand the Information to Proponents (Section 1) of the RFP and agree to
the terms and conditions contained therein in submitting this Proposal.

I/lWe have submitted all Pricing Schedules (in Canadian Dollars), and all other information requested
with the Proposal (required to qualify).

I/We agree that this Proposal shall be irrevocable from the time and date that the Proposals are
opened in accordance with the time period stated in Paragraph 7 of the Information to
Proponents.

I/We agree that this Proposal is made without any connection, knowledge, comparison of figures or
arrangements with any other person or persons submitting a Proposal for the same purpose and is in all
respects fair and without collusion or fraud.

It is further understood and agreed that the lowest or any Proposal will not necessarily be accepted and
that the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library reserves the right in its absolute discretion to reject any or all
Proposals, or accept the Proposal deemed most acceptable to the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library.

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library further reserves the right to negotiate further with the successful
Proponent to finalize the terms and conditions of the Proposal.

I/We agree that the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library’s Purchase Order and Request for Proposal
Document; as well as the Proposal submitted shall constitute the whole of the Agreement with the
successful Proponent unless stated below:

This “Form of Proposal” must be completed, legibly signed in ink, and returned as part of the Proposal
submission to qualify.



FORM OF PROPOSAL (cont'd)
BID AMOUNT
ENGINEERING SERVICES Bid Amount
1.1 Asbestos removal and abatement
All Products & Services $

Note: Quoted Prices are in Canadian Dollars and do not include Harmonized
Sales Taxes.

It is understood that the pricing above is the total price for all services requested per the
specifications listed in Section 3.

In the case of a mathematical discrepancy in the bid pricing per category, the Unit
Prices bid for each item shall prevalil.

NAME OF COMPANY (SEAL)

ADDRESS

CITY POSTAL CODE
SIGNING OFFICER SIGNATURE WITNESS’ SIGNATURE

Corporate Seal is not affixed to Form of Proposal)

SIGNING OFFICER (PRINT NAME) TELEPHONE NUMBER

EMAIL of SIGNING OFFICER DATE



SECTION 3

TERMS OF REFERENCE



TERMS OF REFERENCE
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR ASBESTOS REMOVAL AND ABATEMENT

1. Introduction

The Library Board intends to receive bids for engineering services for the removal and
abatement of asbestos within the James L. Mcintyre Centennial Library located at 50 East St,
Sault Ste. Marie, ON.

The Library location is currently closed to the public during the Covid-19 pandemic with no
current reopening date. Though the Library location is closed to the public, staff still work at the
location daily, Monday through Saturday. Asbestos should be removed and abated and
restoration completed in an expedient way to take advantage of the current closure, to minimize
disruptions to library services.

Bidders are required to provide with their RFP submission a projected Project Timeline

For drawings, instructions and tendering, showing anticipated total number of days/hours each
component of the Work shall require. The exact schedule will be approved by the CEO upon
the awarding of the contract and may include daytime as well as evening and weekend work (if
required). No allowance will be given for premiums associated with evening and weekend work.

2. Familiarity with Requirements — Proponent’s Responsibility

Proponents should address any questions regarding technical information or clarification

of the Terms of Reference to Matthew MacDonald, CEO, (phone) 705-759-5246, or by email to
m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca. A Site Inspection accompanied by Mr. Matthew MacDonald, or his
designate, is recommended prior to submitting a Proposal for Engineering Services.

3. General

The successful Proponent will provide detailed drawings and plans for removing and abating
asbestos from within the James L. Mcintyre Centennial Library, with priority being on the lower
ceilings in public areas as specified and agreed upon in the accepted Proposal. All areas must
be restored following asbestos removal.

The Library has established a budget for engineering services and the removal and abatement
of asbestos. It is agreed and understood that the Library may elect to modify the
guantities/areas listed in each Category based on budget considerations, at its sole discretion.

Scope of work includes:
-+ A detailed plan for removal and abatement of asbestos, including restoration work.

- Drawings
- Overseeing the RFP process for contractors and the overall project
* Regular site inspections

- Ensuring proper disposal of asbestos and that areas of the Library do not become
contaminated

- Ensuring strict adherence to health and safety standards


mailto:m.macdonald@cityssm.on.ca.

In the case of a mathematical discrepancy in the bid pricing, the Unit Prices bid for each item
shall prevail.

4. Direction of Installation, Manuals & Training

The successful Proponent shall ensure that all contractors comply with all Manufacturer’s
Instructions for preparation and installation. The Proponent must ensure that the installation
process used does not negate any applicable warranties. The Proponent shall provide the
Library with a copy of the Manufacturer’s Installation Instructions, Warranties and other
documentation per item type acquired, if any.

The Library will be responsible for controlling access to the work area.

The successful Proponent will ensure that each contractor will have a competent Supervisor
onsite for the entire removal and restoration period (see provisions of the City’s Contractor
Pre-Qualification Program — Paragraph 13 of the Information to Proponents for this RFP) to
direct and supervise the installation.

The Project will not be considered complete until the asbestos has been removed/abated the
area(s) restored, inspected, and approved by the CEO, or his designate.

5. Pricing — to be submitted in Canadian Dollars

Proponents shall provide Pricing Schedules (HST extra) for the creation of plans and drawings
as they relate to the asbestos removal and abatement. All other applicable pricing should be
detailed. (HST extra)

6. Removal and Abatement Time Period

Where the Library is currently closed to the public due to a pandemic, the removal and
abatement of asbestos will have a minimal disruption to library services. Once the library has
reopened to the public the removal and abatement of asbestos will likely have a significant
impact on Library services. Therefore, it is preferable to complete the overall project in an
expedient and timely way. The exact schedule will be approved by the CEO upon the awarding
of the contract and may include daytime as well as evening and weekend work (if required). No
allowance will be given to contractors for premiums associated with evening and weekend work.

7. Proposal Content
Three (3) sets of the Proposal documents shall be submitted — one (1) marked as
“Original” and two (2) marked as “Copy”.

To aid the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library in evaluation of the Proposals submitted, the
following components are to be included in each set of Proposal documents. The order
is to be maintained in the Proposal Submission. Pages are to be numbered and each
document securely bound (method at discretion of Proponent):

Title Page - Showing RFP name and file number, closing date and time, Proponent’s name,
address, telephone number, facsimile number and name of Contact Person (with email
address).

Table of Contents - Include page numbers.

Letter of Introduction - One page, introducing the Proponent and signed by the person(s)
authorized to sign on behalf of, and bind the Proponent to, statements made in response to this
RFP.



Form of Proposal - As included in Section 2 of the Request for Proposal — alterations not
permitted. Signed and witnessed as required — original signatures in legible ink must be
present in the Proposal Document set marked “Original”.

Proponent’'s Response —

Summary — Provide a short summary of the plan to remove and abate asbestos in the various
areas of the James L. Mcintyre Centennial Library in areas identified in the provided asbestos
reports. Past successful experience by the Proponent in such project management should be
listed.

Proposed Solutions — Provide overview of the areas and solutions proposed for removing
asbestos and/or doing abatement such as encapsulation. Information regarding the restoration
of those areas must be outlined. The Proponent is to provide drawings indicating target areas.
Pricing — Provide detailed Pricing Schedules. See Paragraphs 3, 4 & 5 above in

the Terms of Reference for any clarification required.

Methodology and Work Plan — Provide details of proposed schedule recognizing that desired
completion is on or before December 31, 2020. Provide details of ideal Crew Size for installation
including any required skills. Provide details of any requirements for site preparation to be
performed by the Library prior to the start of installation.

Manuals & Training — Detail Manuals and Training to be provided as per Paragraph 4 above.
References — Provide a list of references (minimum of three (3) preferred) for which the
Proponent has supplied plans and drawings for asbestos removal and abatement in the past
five (5) years. Full Contact details including Contact Name and Coordinates to be included.
Proponents should also include any other information or documentation that they deem
to be of assistance to the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library during the Evaluation Process.

8. Evaluation

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library will evaluate all Proposals received on the basis of defined
evaluation criteria. These criteria will not be made available to prospective Proponents. The
evaluation criteria will reflect the submission requirements above and include:

* Quality and clarity of the submission;

- The degree to which all objectives of the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library are met;
- Nature and suitability of solution(s);

- Commitment to required timeline;

* Pricing;

The above list of criteria represents areas which are to be specifically addressed in the
Proposal. The evaluation process will not be limited to these areas. Other criteria not
specifically listed above will also receive consideration. The order in which the criteria
are listed does not indicate the weighting of the evaluation.

As noted, the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library reserves the right, in its sole and absolute
discretion to select a preferred Proponent with which to negotiate a final contract, terminate the
Proposal call and negotiate with one or more Proponents, or reject any and all Proposals. The
Sault Ste. Marie Public Library will not necessarily select the Proposal with the lowest proposed
cost; or any other Proposal.

Proponents are reminded that there is no recourse to the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library for its
decision and the Sault Ste. Marie Public Library will not provide any compensation to



Proponents for costs incurred in the preparation of Proposals; or preparation for, or attendance
at, any interview or demonstration requested as part of the evaluation process for Proposals
received. The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library will attempt to obtain any further required
information or clarification by electronic means whenever possible.

The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library will endeavour to complete the evaluation process in the
shortest time possible. The Sault Ste. Marie Public Library reserves the right to contact
Proponents to seek clarification of the Proposals, as submitted, to assist in the
evaluation process.



SECTION 4

SPECIFICATIONS

&

DRAWINGS



APPENDIX A

JAMES L. MCINTYRE CENTENNIAL LIBRARY FLOOR PLANS



FLOOR PLANS

MAIN

 Fire Extinguisher
P Fire Alarm Pull
@ Gas shut Off
E} First Aid Station

Adult
Reference Area

UPPER LEVEL

< ;Circulation E} > lﬁl\

LOWER LEVEL

Back
Door Exit

Side door
emergency exit

T

Staff Room

Work Room

Transformer

@
T

1)
|

Mechanical & Furnace

P

| Storage

A

Alarm Parel

Electrical
- Room

B

L]

Storage

I

Children’s Staff Cataloguing Outreach
Invoicing . iﬁ
Friends Board
'mReceivhg - Washrobms ookstore Room
P

Story Room

|

Administratig

=1

Cafe

Conservation

Storage

Mechanical

4 A\
/N
Elevator Sump

Room

Pump

Room



APPENDIX B

RISK CHECK REPORT:

2019 ANNUAL ASBESTOS CONTAINING MATERIALS REASSESSMENT



skCheck

2018 ANNUAL ASBESTOS CONTAINING
MATERIALS REASSESSMENT

Centennial Library
50 East Street
Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

Prepared for:

The Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie
99 Foster Drive — Level 2

Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario, P6A 5X6

Prepared by:

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd.
Atria ll, Suite 1501

2235 Sheppard Avenue East
Toronto, Ontario, M2J 5B5
Tel: (416) 640-2444

Fax: (416) 640-2445
www.riskcheckinc.com

Report Date: October 12, 2018
RiskCheck Project No. 28726



Project No: 28726
The Corp. of the City of Sault Ste. Marie

2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials Reassessment
Centennial Library, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. (RiskCheck) was retained by The Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie,
(The City, Client) to conduct the 2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials (ACM) Reassessment in the
building known as Centennial Library, located at 50 East Street, in Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario (subject
building).

The 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment was requested by The City to meet the requirements listed in Ontario
Regulation (0. Reg.) 278/05 — Designated Substance — Asbestos on Construction Projects and in Buildings
and Repair Operations (as amended).

Fieldwork was conducted on July 19, 2018. Fieldwork included a thorough visual inspection of accessible
areas of the subject building with previously identified ACM.

The following table indicates the ACM that were suspected or confirmed to be present within the building
materials observed in the subject building:

. Material & uantit . Sample No. .
Location o Q 4 Condition P / Recommended Action
Description (Approx.) Result
Asbestos
Lower —
Stairwell by 10 Each )
Staff Room (Ea) Manage in place. All
Previously visually similar cement
Lower — Boiler Pa-rgllng Cement 10 Ea Good determined to pronucts thrqughout the
Room Fittings - CHW subject  building are
be ACM .
presumed to contain
asbestos.
Penthouse 12 Ea
Manage in place. All
Parging Cement Previousl visually similar cement
Lower — Work g' g . y products throughout the
Fittings - 3Ea Good determined to . A
Room . subject  building are
Drainage be ACM .
presumed to contain
asbestos.
Manage in place. All
Previously visually similar cement
Lower — Boiler Pa.rg.lng Cement 4 Ea Good determined to pronucts thrgughout the
Room Fittings - DCW subject  building are
be ACM .
presumed to contain
asbestos.
RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Pageiii




Project No: 28726

The Corp. of the City of Sault Ste. Marie

2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials Reassessment
Centennial Library, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

. Material & uantit . Sample No. .
Location o Q 4 Condition P / Recommended Action
Description (Approx.) Result
Lower — Work 16 Ea
Room
Lower — Boiler Manage .|n‘ place. All
10 Ea ) visually similar cement
Room . Previously
Parging Cement . products throughout the
o Good determined to . [
Fittings - HWH subject  building are
Lower — be ACM .
L 14 Ea presumed to contain
Receiving
asbestos.
Penthouse 12 Ea
Manage in place. All
Previously visually similar cement
Lower — Boiler PaTrg.lng Cement 6 Ea Good determined to proFiucts thrgughout the
Room Fittings - DHW subject  building are
be ACM .
presumed to contain
asbestos.
Lower - 20 Ea
Receiving Manage in place. All
Previously visually similar cement
L.ower— Pal.'gl.ng Cement 3Ea Good determined to pronucts thrgughout the
Janitor Room Fittings - DW subject  building are
be ACM .
presumed to contain
asbestos.
Penthouse 10 Ea
Lower — Staff )
Hall 2 225 ft
Lower — Manage in place. All
Projection 12”x12” Brown 112 ft? visually similar vinyl floor
Room with Light Good Presumed tiles  throughout the
L Staff Streaks Vinyl ACM subject  building are
ower - Sta Floor Tiles 400 ft2 considered to contain
Hall 1
asbestos.
Upper - 40 f©?
Janitor Room
Manage in place. All
Previously visually similar cement
L - Not Esti h h h
ower —Sump Duct Parging ot Estimated Good determined to pro@ucts t rc?ug out the
Pump (N/E) subject  building are
be ACM .
presumed to contain
asbestos.
RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Page iii




Project No: 28726
The Corp. of the City of Sault Ste. Marie

2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials Reassessment

Centennial Library, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

. Material & uantit . Sample No. .
Location o Q 4 Condition P / Recommended Action
Description (Approx.) Result
Previously .
U - Not ob datt f
.pper Duct Parging Unknown Unknown determined to ° o.ser\{e. at time o
Janitor Room 2018 site visit.
be ACM
Manage in place. All
visually similar vibration
Lower — Boiler > Ea Good dampers thrqughout the
Room subject  building are
considered to contain
asbestos.
Lower — Vibration 1Ea Good Presumed Not observed at time of
Janitor Room Damper ACM 2018 site visit.
Manage in place. All
visually similar vibration
Penthouse 6 Ea Good dampers thrc?ug.hout the
subject  building are
considered to contain
asbestos.
Manage in place. All
. visually  similar  wrap
Previously .
Penthouse Wrap Packing N/E Good determined to pac!<|ng throu.gh.out th.e
subject building is
be ACM . .
considered to contain
asbestos.
Lower — Staff 875 12
Room
Lower — Staff )
Hall 2 225 ft
Lower — Manage in place. All
Conservation 300 ft? . visually similar texture
Room Previously coating throughout the
Texture Coat Good determined to . g .
be ACM subject building is
Lower — Staff 400 ft2 considered to contain
Hall 1 asbestos.
Lower — Story 1200 fi2
Room
Lower — 300 2
Lower Lobby
RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O -kCheck Page iv




Project No: 28726

The Corp. of the City of Sault Ste. Marie

2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials Reassessment
Centennial Library, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

. Material & uantit . Sample No. .
Location o Q 4 Condition P / Recommended Action
Description (Approx.) Result
Manage in place. Refer
Upper — Low ) . to other reports for air
Ceiling Areas 2,800t Fair monitoring results and
recommendations.
Upper — High
p'p'er Ig 4,400 ftz Good Previously
Ceiling Areas Manage in place. All
Texture Coat determinedto | . :
Upper — be ACM visually similar texture
Hallway to 200 fi2 Good coating throughout the
Govt Docs subject building is
considered to contain
_ - asbestos.
Upper = Main 490 ft2 Good
Lobby

Summary of Recommendations:

Based on the visual observations noted during the 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment, the following
conclusions and recommendations are provided:

1) This 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment report should be read in conjunction with previous ACM

2)

3)

4)

5)

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd.

related reports for the subject building.

Additional ACM may be present outside the specific areas and materials of the subject building.
If concealed materials are observed during renovation/demolition activities, it is recommended
to sample the materials and submit for analysis of asbestos content.

It is recommended that the known ACM continue to be managed through the onsite Asbestos
Management Plan (AMP) for the subject building. The AMP should be inclusive of asbestos and
regulatory background, asbestos records, procedures to notify building occupants and
contractors, work procedures, and training requirements for workers.

As part of the on-going management of ACM within the subject building and to maintain
compliance with O. Reg. 278/05; the asbestos record must be updated at least once in a 12-
month calendar year to determine if the conditions of the ACM have changed and if they may
require repair or removal.

Any disturbance or removal of ACM must be completed by a licensed abatement contractor
under the direct supervision of an environmental consultant following the asbestos abatement
procedures as outlined in O. Reg. 278/05. Update the asbestos record following the completion
of any repair or removal of ACM.

Page v

©

Check



Project No: 28726 2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials Reassessment
The Corp. of the City of Sault Ste. Marie Centennial Library, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

6) The ACM Reassessment was conducted for the purposes of long-term management of ACM at
the subject building and was completed on a representative basis for the subject building. The
assessment was not conducted for renovation or demolition purposes. In the event of
renovation or demolition activities, an intrusive Designated Substances Survey of the proposed
renovation/demolition areas shall be required to determine the presence/absence of designated
substances in those areas prior to any construction related disturbance of the building materials,
to maintain compliance with O. Reg. 490/09 — Designated Substances (as amended).

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Page vi



Project No: 28726 2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials Reassessment

The Corp. of the City of Sault Ste. Marie Centennial Library, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page No.

1.0 INTRODUCTION ...couiiiieiiiieiirniireeiiimesirmesirsssrmesssssssirssssrssssrasssrsessssssssssssssssssssssssasssrsssssssssssnssses 1

2.0 BUILDING DESCRIPTION......cituiiituuiirieiirieiiraniiinecrmesiimasismssssrssssrsessrssssrssssssssssssssssssssrsssssssssssnssses 1

3.0 SCOPE OF WORK .. itutiituiiiiniiineiiineiiienieienieisaeisniisnsissssiessesstsssssassesssssssssssenssssnssssnssssnsssssnsssanses 2

3.1 RECOIAS REVIEBW ...cccceiiiiiiee e ettt e ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e s e s abtaaeeeeeeeesassbaaeeeeeeesnssaaeeaessennnsnns 2

4.0 IMETHODOLOGY .. ccuuiiiuiiiiniiiniiianieinsieissssienierssesssssssssssssssessssessssstsnssssnsssssssssnsssssssessssesssssssnsssen 2

5.0 SITE FINDINGS AND DISCUSSION ....cicuiiieniiiinniiiniieniiiniiimiiisisionierssserssssssnsssssssssssssssssssssssssnnes 3

5.1 Previously 1dentified ACIM ..........uii ittt ettt e e tte e e et e e e e abee e e enbree e e anes 3

6.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ....cccittiiiimnicitniiieniiieniiimiiimiississisisnisssssssssnes 3

7.0 0110 1 U 4
LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix A — 2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Material Summary Table
Appendix B — Representative Site Photographs
Appendix C — Figures

Appendix D — Limitations, Terms and Conditions of Retainer

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Page vii



Project No: 28726 2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials Reassessment
The Corp. of the City of Sault Ste. Marie Centennial Library, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

1.0 INTRODUCTION

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. (RiskCheck) was retained by The Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie,
(The City, Client) to conduct the 2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials (ACM) Reassessment in the
building known as Centennial Library, located at 50 East Street, in Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario (subject
building). The 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment was performed by Mr. Paul Theriault on July 19, 2018.
Access to the subject building was provided by Mr. Matthew MacDonald of The City, who accompanied
the RiskCheck representative during portions of the site visit.

The purpose of the 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment was to determine the condition of known ACM that
were previously identified in select areas of the subject building, update the supporting documents,
identify any changes that may have occurred to the condition/quantities of the known ACM and document
any newly identified ACM that may have been observed.

RiskCheck also understands that the 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment was requested by The City to meet

the requirements listed in Ontario Regulation (O. Reg.) 278/05 — Designated Substance — Asbestos on
Construction Projects and in Buildings and Repair Operations (as amended).

2.0 BUILDING DESCRIPTION

At the time of the site visit on July 19, 2018, the subject building was comprised of the following details:

Component Subject Building Features

Building Use: Institutional building utilized as a library

Number of Buildings 1

Number of Levels: Two-storeys, lower level is partially below grade and upper level is above grade

Apzerlieiis Bullelin Square Metres (m?): 3,115 Square Feet (ft?): 33,525
Area:

Year of Construction: 1965 Known Additions: Unknown

Flooring Finishes: Carpet, concrete, laminant, vinyl floor tiles, and wood

Wall Finishes: Concrete block and drywall
Ceiling Finishes: Acoustic lay-in ceiling tiles, drywall, metal slats, and texture coat
Floor: Concrete
Building Structure: Wall Frame: Concrete (e.g. columns)

Ceiling Frame: Concrete (e.g. beam, deck, joist)

Building Exterior Facade: | Brick, metal panels, glazing

Roofing Type: Unknown

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Page 1



Project No: 28726 2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials Reassessment
The Corp. of the City of Sault Ste. Marie Centennial Library, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

Component Subject Building Features

Heating, Ventilation and | Boiler units providing hot water to air handling units, perimeter radiators, and
Air Conditioning (HVAC): | suspended heaters; chiller unit providing chilled water to air handling units

The subject building was occupied at the time of the site visit.

3.0 SCOPE OF WORK

The 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment conducted by RiskCheck consisted of the following:

e  Review of previous environmental reports (including previous surveys, drawings, abatement
reports etc.) pertaining to the subject building provided to RiskCheck by the Client;

e  Visual inspection and/or inquiry with the site contact as to the condition of known ACM based on
locations and quantities previously reported;

e  Collection and submission of bulk samples where required, if unidentified suspect ACM were
observed during the Annual ACM Reassessment;

e  Update the 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment summary table and figures where necessary;

e  Obtain representative site photographs of previously and newly identified presumed/suspect or
damaged ACM; and

e  Preparation of a report summarizing the findings of items above and providing recommendations
as necessary regarding the ongoing management of ACM identified at the subject building.

3.1 Records Review
As part of the 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment, RiskCheck reviewed the following report:

o “City of Sault Ste. Marie, Asbestos Re-Surveys 2016, Master Summary”, excel file prepared for The
City by Harris Building Science Inc.

As identified in the above noted environmental reports, building materials that were identified to be
suspect/presumed or confirmed to be ACM were summarized in the 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment
summary table provided in Appendix A.

40 METHODOLOGY

The 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment consisted of a visual (non-intrusive) inspection of ACM that were
previously identified and reported to be present in the subject building. Any changes to the inventory of
ACM onsite; specifically changes to the condition, quantity, location, friability, accessibility and likelihood
of damage were documented and are presented in this report. Selected photographs from the 2018

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Page 2



Project No: 28726 2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials Reassessment
The Corp. of the City of Sault Ste. Marie Centennial Library, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

Annual ACM Reassessment are included in Appendix B. Changes to the site figures where applicable, were
completed and are provided in Appendix C.

RiskCheck relied on The City to provide access to locked or limited-access areas of the subject building on
the date of the site visit. All areas of the subject building with previously identified ACM were accessible
at the time of the 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment.

5.0 SITE FINDINGS AND DISCUSSION

5.1 Previously Identified ACM

At the time of the 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment site visit, ACM that were previously identified and
recorded to be present in the subject building were generally observed to be in good condition. The
guantities of the previously identified ACM were similar when compared to the previous environmental
report (listed in Section 3.1).

It should be noted that additional ACM could exist in visually inaccessible areas or areas of the subject
building that were not made accessible to the RiskCheck site representative.

Upon review of the site observations noted during the 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment and the analytical
results (where applicable), the inventoried ACM present within the subject building are generally in
compliance with the requirements of O. Reg. 278/05. ACM texture coat on low ceiling areas of the upper
level library should continue to be monitored for deterioration and removed or encapsulated is continued
damaged is noted.

If a specific area within the subject building is scheduled to undergo interior renovation or demolition
activities, an intrusive Designated Substances Survey of the proposed renovation/demolition areas shall
be required to determine the presence/absence of designated substances in those areas prior to any
construction related disturbance of the building materials, to maintain compliance with O. Reg. 490/09 —
Designated Substances (as amended).

6.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the visual observations noted during the 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment, the following
conclusions and recommendations are provided:

1) This 2018 Annual ACM Reassessment report should be read in conjunction with previous ACM
related reports for the subject building.

2) Additional ACM may be present outside the specific areas and materials of the subject building.
If concealed materials are observed during renovation/demolition activities, it is recommended

to sample the materials and submit for analysis of asbestos content.

3) It is recommended that the known ACM continue to be managed through the onsite Asbestos
Management Plan (AMP) for the subject building. The AMP should be inclusive of asbestos and

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Page 3



Project No: 28726 2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials Reassessment
The Corp. of the City of Sault Ste. Marie Centennial Library, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

regulatory background, asbestos records, procedures to notify building occupants and
contractors, work procedures, and training requirements for workers.

4) As part of the on-going management of ACM within the subject building and to maintain
compliance with O. Reg. 278/05; the asbestos record must be updated at least once in a 12-
month calendar year to determine if the conditions of the ACM have changed and if they may
require repair or removal.

5) Any disturbance or removal of ACM must be completed by a licensed abatement contractor
under the direct supervision of an environmental consultant following the asbestos abatement
procedures as outlined in O. Reg. 278/05. Update the asbestos record following the completion
of any repair or removal of ACM.

6) The ACM Reassessment was conducted for the purposes of long-term management of ACM at
the subject building and was completed on a representative basis for the subject building. The
assessment was not conducted for renovation or demolition purposes. In the event of
renovation or demolition activities, an intrusive Designated Substances Survey of the proposed
renovation/demolition areas shall be required to determine the presence/absence of designated
substances in those areas prior to any construction related disturbance of the building materials,
to maintain compliance with O. Reg. 490/09 — Designated Substances (as amended).

7.0 CLOSURE

This report was prepared for the exclusive use of The Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie, (The City,
Client). The report may not be relied upon by any other person or entity without the express written
consent of RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. (RiskCheck) and The City. Any use that a party makes of this
report, or any reliance on decisions made based on it, is the sole responsibility of such parties. RiskCheck
accepts no responsibility for damages, if any, suffered by any party as a result of decisions made or actions
based on this report.

The information and conclusions contained in this report are based upon work undertaken by trained
professional and technical staff in accordance with generally accepted engineering and scientific practices
current at the time the work was performed. Some of the information presented in this report may have
been provided through existing documents and/or interviews. For this Annual ACM Reassessment, the
information provided in reports provided to RiskCheck was not verified. Conclusions presented in the
letter report should not be construed as legal advice. No assurance is made regarding changes in
conditions or practices subsequent to the time of the investigation.

The conclusions presented represent the best judgement of the assessor, based on the limited activities
carried out. Due to the nature of the subject building, the assessor cannot warrant against undiscovered
asbestos containing materials that may still exist between walls or behind other enclosures/barriers which
would not have been visible during inspection activities.

RiskCheck makes no other representation whatsoever, including those concerning the legal significance
of its findings, or as to the other legal matters addressed incidentally in this report, including but not

limited to the application of any law to the facts set forth herein. With respect to regulatory compliance

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Page 4



Project No: 28726 2018 Annual Asbestos Containing Materials Reassessment
The Corp. of the City of Sault Ste. Marie Centennial Library, 50 East Street, Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario

issues, regulatory statutes are subject to interpretation. These interpretations may change over time,
thus The City should review such issues with appropriate legal counsel. The asbestos containing materials
locations and conclusions provided are based on information obtained from visual inspection and limited
sampling carried out, at the specific test locations, and information obtained from the building personnel.
The results can only be extrapolated to an undefined area around the test locations. It is possible that
additional, concealed designated substances may become evident during demolition/renovation
activities.

Any quantities or areas (including but not limited to damaged areas, mould affected areas, asbestos or
lead containing materials) provided in this report are order-of-magnitude values or estimates and should
not be considered as exact values. Should there be a requirement for abatement (e.g. asbestos, lead or
mould), the estimated quantities or areas noted are not to be used for tender documents or providing
guotations or for any other business decisions without prior consent from RiskCheck. A more detailed
site investigation may be required to verify the quantity and/or areas of materials and site conditions that
may affect the overall project cost. Furthermore, it is important to note that the conditions of the
potential hazardous building materials may have changed since the time of the RiskCheck site visit or
investigation. RiskCheck will not be held responsible for any deviations in the estimated quantities or
areas documented.

A copy of our Limitations, Terms and Conditions of Retainer is appended to this report as Appendix D and
applies to all work performed.

We trust this report meets your current requirements. Should you have any questions or require
clarification or additional information, please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned.

Respectfully submitted,

RISKCHECK ENVIRONMENTAL LTD.

S 2y R

Paul Theriault, B.Sc. (Env) Steven Little, Dipl. Env., WRT
Project Technologist, Hazardous Materials Manager, Hazardous Materials
ptheriault@riskcheckinc.com slittle@riskcheckinc.com

Distribution: (1 PDF Copy) Mr. Aldo lacoe, (The Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie)

‘%///7 Professional Engineers

Ontario

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Page 5



APPENDIX A

2018 ANNUAL ASBESTOS CONTAINING MATERIAL
SUMMARY TABLE

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Project No. 28726



TABLE 1 - SUMMARY OF SUSPECT AND CONFIRMED ACM SAMPLE RESULTS

CITY OF SAULT STE. MARIE

CONSTRUCTION DATE: 1965

ASBESTOS SURVEY

LOCATION: 50 EAST ST. - MAIN LIBRARY

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd.

2235 Sheppard Avenue East, Atria Il Suite 1501
Toronto, Ontario, M2J 585

[Tel: (416) 640-2444

SURVEY DATE: July 19, 2018

N (0]

\P = Possible

*CONDITION CODE:

Stairwell by Staff Room

CHW

Parging Cement Fittings

Ten (10) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.

Lower |Staff Room

CEILING

Texture Coat

Approximately 875 f of texture coat was observed. Manage in place.

Lower |Work Room

DRAINAGE

Parging Cement Fittings

Three (3) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.

Lower |Work Room

HWH

Parging Cement Fittings

Sixteen (16) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.

Lower |Boiler Room

Parging Cement Fittings

Lower |Boiler Room

Parging Cement Fittings

replaced - 2010.

Ten (10) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place. Boilers and some related piping

Ten (10) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.

Lower |Boiler Room

Parging Cement Fittings

Four (4) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.

Lower |Boiler Room

Parging Cement Fittings

Six (6) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.

Lower |Boiler Room

DUCT

Vibration Damper

Two (2) vibration dampers were observed. Manage in place.

Lower |Staff Hall 2

CEILING

Texture Coat

Approximately 225 f of texture coat was observed. Manage in place.

Lower |Staff Hall 2

FLOORING

12"x12" Vinyl Floor Tiles

Brown with light streaks vinyl floor tiles (approximately 225 ff).

Lower  |Projection Room

FLOORING

12"x12" Vinyl Floor Tiles

Brown with light streaks vinyl floor tiles (approximately 112 ff).

Lower |Receiving

Lower |Receiving

Lower |Jan. Rm.

Lower |Jan. Rm.

Lower |Conservation Room

Lower |Sump Pump

Lower |Staff Hall 1

Lower |Staff Hall 1

Lower |Story Room

Lower |Lower Lobby

Upper |Jan. Rm.

Upper |Jan. Rm.

Upper  |Open Areas

Upper |Corner Areas

Upper  |Hallway to Govt Docs

Upper  |Lobby

PH Penthouse

PH Penthouse

PH Penthouse

PH Penthouse

PH Penthouse

DwW Parging Cement Fittings Yes Twenty (20) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.
HWH Parging Cement Fittings Yes Fourteen (14) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.
DUCT Vibration Damper No One (1) vibration damper was observed. Manage in place.
DwW Parging Cement Fittings Yes Three (3) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.
CEILING Texture Coat Yes Approximately 300 £ of texture coat was observed. Manage in place.
DUCT Duct Parging Yes Not observed, presumed to have been abated.
FLOORING 12"x12" Vinyl Floor Tiles No Brown with light streaks vinyl floor tiles (approximately 400 ff).
CEILING Texture Coat Yes Approximately 400 f of texture coat was observed. Manage in place.
CEILING Texture Coat Yes Approximately 1200 ff of texture coat was observed. Manage in place.
CEILING Texture Coat Yes Approximately 800 f of texture coat was observed. Manage in place.
FLOORING 12"x12" Vinyl Floor Tiles No Brown with light streaks vinyl floor tiles (approximately 40 ff).
DUCT Duct Parging Yes Not observed, presumed to have been abated.
CEILING Texture Coat on High Ceiling Yes Approximately 4,400 f
CEILING Texture Coat on Low Ceiling Yes Continued deterioration - see sep reports. Approxi 2,800 ft*
CEILING Texture Coat Yes Approximately 200 ff, some water-staining
CEILING Texture Coat Yes Approximately 490 ff
PIPING Wrap Packing Yes

Vibration Damper No Six (6) vibration dampers were observed. Manage in place.
HWH Parging Cement Fittings Yes Twelve (12) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.
CHW Parging Cement Fittings Yes Twelve (12) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.
bW Parging Cement Fittings Yes Ten (10) parging cement fittings were observed. Manage in place.




APPENDIX B

REPRESENTATIVE SITE PHOTOGRAPHS

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Project No. 28726



Photo 1: Typical view of the ACM parging cement | Photo 2: Typical view of the ACM texture coating (see
fittings (see arrow) that were observed in the subject | arrow) that was observed in the subject building.
building.

Photo 3: Typical view of the presumed ACM vibration | Photo 4: Typical view of the presumed ACM 12"x12”
dampers (see arrow) that were observed in the subject | brown with light streaks vinyl floor tiles that were
building. observed in the subject building.

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. @?)fﬁ%is;%acheck Project No. 28726



Photo 5: Typical view of the ACM duct parging cement | Photo 6: View of the ACM wrap packing (see arrow)
(see arrow) that was observed in the subject building. | that was observed in the subject building.

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O RiskCheck Project No. 28726



APPENDIX C

FIGURES

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Project No. 28726



u + + + + + o+ o+
+ + + + + o+ o+
+ o+ + 4+ o+ o+ o+
L — Y . + + + + + o+ o+
+ + + + + ] + + + + + + +
+ 0+ o+ o+ + o+ +|[+ + + + + + + A
1 + o+ + + + + 4 + + + + + + +
: : R e— + + ++ + + + +
+ + + F F + 4+ + + + T + d + ¢+ + o+ o+ o+
“ + o+ + o+ o+ + o+ o+ + +[+ + + + o+
+ o+ + + + + + o+ o+ + 4+ + + + + +
+ o+ + o+ o+ + + + + + + + 4+ + o+ + o+
U + o+ o+ + + + + + o+ o+ + 0+ + + + + o+ 4+ +
+ + + _+ + + + + + +d-|+ + + + + 4
[ (=] —— ] . ),
+
L A
———— ol s
” I+
i ]:d
5 1
+
. ﬂ ] I

1]
R T I S R UL T SR A AT S SURE SR
RS S T S v S R SRS S e SR a5
T

R P A

"

i,

m LOCATION OF ASBESTOS CONTAINING PARGING CEMENT

Chec

Environmental, Health & Safety
Risk Management

MATERIALS REASSESSMENT
-LOWER LEVEL

50 EAST STREET,

SAULT STE. MARIE, ON

SAULT STE. MARIE,
99 FOSTER DR.,

SAULT STE. MARIE, ON

Reviewed By:
P.THERIAULT
[Scale |

\_ NTS

7 ) /7 /7 /0
S ) ) ) s
////, 7 S ////, 7
/7 // | / /. /7
PNt
YIIrIA
I
Y IIIIA
7 G
/7 2 I !
/7
)
A
+  +F F
+ + +
+ + +
+ + B2
+ +
+| + +
+ +
+| + +
+ +
+| + +
Legend Project Name Project Address Client Name and Address [ Pro Elﬁlio o1
=] LOCATION OF ASBESTOS CONTAINING VINYL FLOOR TILES 28726 -10.
LOCATION OF ASBESTOS CONTAINING TEXTURED FINISHED CEILING ASBESTOS CONTAINING CITY OF D:'GLKH Figure

1

\S

2/




PENTHOUSE

F F F F F F F F F F A F+ F F F F F F F F F 7
T T S S o+ 4+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ 4+
L. ST Sy b T T T T ]
+ + . ] . . + [
Fo- S H[F F 4+ FFFFFF O+ o+ F F k- +
+ +F + + o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ A+ [
bo- | T T I T | T +
+ [P | P, T+ 4| + [
o - 4|+ + + R | R +
+ + |- - + [
bo- -t k- +
+ + + [
bo- - boo- 1
+ + +
Fo- -t - k-
+ + +
bo- -t k-
+ o+ 4+ + +
F o+ o+ -t k-
+ + = + + o+ o+ — + +
+ CF F o+ F o F F o+ F o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ - +
+ o+ o+ F o+ F o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ +
+ -+ + - +
+ + + +
+ -+ + - +
+ + + +
+ -+ + - +
+ + + +
+ - + - +
+ + + +
e T S
I T T T T T S T T S T T T T TR R T T T T
F o+ 4 4 + + + + + + 4+ F + + o+ o+ + + + F F o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ A+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ + 4+ o+ A
+ + + +
oo+ -+ + - P
+ + + +
oo+ -+ + - P
+ + + +
oo+ . + - + 4
+ + + +
F o+ + 4+ + 4+ + + 4+ + 4+ + + F + 4+ o+ 4+ F 4+ F o+ 4+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ A
L L L L 1 e
F o+ + 4 + + + + + 4+ 4+ + + + + + + + + F F F o+ o+ o+ o+ A+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ A+ + o+ A
+ + [ + +
oo+ -+ + - P
+ + + +
oo+ . + - P
+ + + +
oo+ - - + 4
o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ 4+
F o+ + 4+ + 4+ o+ + o+ o+ 4+ 4 b+ + o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+
[
—_—

m LOCATION OF ASBESTOS CONTAINING PARGING CEMENT

MATERIALS REASSESSMENT
-UPPER LEVEL

Chec

Environmental, Health & Safety
Risk Management

SAULT STE. MARIE,
99 FOSTER DR.,
SAULT STE. MARIE, ON

50 EAST STREET,
SAULT STE. MARIE, ON

P.THERIAULT

2

Legend Project Name Project Addrees Client Nome and Address Project Dats w
=] LOCATION OF ASBESTOS CONTAINING VINYL FLOOR TILES c o 28726 5.10.2018

ITY OF Drawn By: Figure
LOCATION OF ASBESTOS CONTAINING TEXTURED FINISHED CEILING ASBESTOS CONTAINING H.ULLAH

\S

Z/




APPENDIX D

LIMITATIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF RETAINER

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Project No. 28726



RISKCHECK ENVIRONMENTAL LTD.
LIMITATIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF RETAINER

Our Standard of Care - RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. (RiskCheck) will conduct/has conducted the work as
specified in the scope of work, contained in the RiskCheck proposal and/or the engagement letter, and
perform/performed the environmental investigations requested by the Client according to the standards of a
reasonable environmental consultant ("Retainer"). Any work performed by RiskCheck is conducted in
accordance with generally accepted engineering or scientific or environmental practices current in the location
and at the time the work is performed. No other warranty, expressed or implied is made.

Our Sources of Information - RiskCheck will/has sought to obtain relevant information, statements, documents
and analytical test results concerning the subject property from our Client, third party sources, government or
regulatory publications, databases and officials, and other persons to the extent covered by our Retainer. The
accuracy of the findings, opinions and conclusions expressed in the RiskCheck report and/or any deliverables
(“Deliverables”) are subject to any errors or omissions in, or refusals to provide, information. RiskCheck shall
not be responsible for any deficiency, misstatement, or inaccuracy contained in the Deliverables as a result of
relying on the above information or lack thereof.

Site Inspections - RiskCheck will complete/has completed the inspection(s) of the subject property in the
manner covered by our Retainer. The purpose of our inspection is to identify obvious visible evidence of
potential and/or actual sources of environmental contamination and patent irregularities in waste management
practices at the subject property. Our findings during the site inspection(s) are subject to any restrictions placed
upon our free access to all aspects of the subject property, and neighbouring properties, including but not
limited to snow coverage and material storage. A reasonable site inspection may not identify latent or hidden
contamination, evidence of potential environmental concerns or irregularities.

Sample and Testing Procedures - The sample and testing procedures described in the Deliverables, are
performed at specific point locations, by experienced personnel using equipment and techniques appropriate
for our Retainer. Based upon available data, RiskCheck provides expressed opinion as to the conditions, which
may exist between the points investigated, and is based on the location and time of sample collection, and the
type of media and parameters analyzed. As actual conditions may vary significantly between sample or test
points, and with time, our Client assumes the inherent risk that some conditions may not be detected. RiskCheck
shall not be responsible for any cross-contamination resulting from subsurface investigations.

Legal Issues - The Deliverables are intended to direct our Client's attention to potential and/or actual sources
of environmental contamination, including but not limited to, irregular waste management practices at the
subject property. Nothing in the Deliverables are intended to express any legal opinion upon environmental
liabilities relating to the subject property or whether site operations legally conform with relevant legislative
requirements. RiskCheck makes no other representations or warranties whatsoever, including those concerning
the legal significance of our findings, or as to other legal matters noted in the Deliverables, including but not
limited to, ownership of any property, or the application of any law, to the facts set forth herein.

Confidentiality of Client Information — RiskCheck agrees to hold all information obtained in the course of our
Retainer and the contents of the Deliverables in strict confidence, except where disclosure is directed by our
Client's expressed written consent with instructions, or by compulsion of law.

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Project No. 28726



Working Information/Documents — The Deliverables shall be the property of RiskCheck's Client. All other data,
sample and test results, working sheets, draft reports or other papers, documents, information or records
prepared or collected by us in the course of our Retainer, shall remain the property of RiskCheck Environmental
Ltd. and/or successors. Our Client agrees that we shall be entitled to retain a copy of the Deliverables for
RiskCheck's own files.

Use of the Deliverables — The information and opinions expressed in the Deliverables are prepared for the sole
benefit of our Client. No other party may use or rely upon the Deliverables, or any portion thereof, without the
express written consent of RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. and/or successors. We accept no responsibility for the
accuracy of the Deliverables to other parties. We give no warranty, representation, or assurance to other
parties, that the findings, statements, opinions or conclusions expressed in the Deliverables are accurate or
valid. RiskCheck, at its discretion, will consent to any reasonable request by our Client to approve the use of the
Deliverables by other parties as "Approved Users" within one year from the date of the Deliverables.

Copyright — RiskCheck owns copyright of the Deliverables. We authorize our Client and "Approved Users" to
make copies of the Deliverables only in such quantities as are reasonably necessary for its use by those parties.
Our Client and Approved Users may not give, lend, sell, or otherwise make available our Deliverables, or any
portion or copy thereof, to any party, without our express written consent. No person may alter or modify the
Deliverables.

. Personal Liability — The Client and/or “Approved User” expressly agrees that RiskCheck employees shall have
no personal liability to the Client and/or “Approved User” with respect to a claim, whether in contract, tort
and/or any other cause of action in law. Furthermore, the Client and/or “Approved User” agrees that it will
bring no proceedings, nor take any action in any court of law, against RiskCheck employees in their personal
capacity.

. Professional Liability — RiskCheck will not be responsible for any consequential or indirect losses incurred by
the Client and/or "Approved Users", including but not limited to, loss of income, business opportunities,
business interruptions, personal injury or death.

. Subconsultant and Contractor Liability — RiskCheck on certain investigations/assessments (including but not
limited to subsurface investigations, laboratory services, remediation, risk assessments, abatements) will
require hiring the services of individuals and companies with special expertise and/or services, which are not
provided by RiskCheck. RiskCheck may retain these services on behalf of the Client, as part of the overall project,
as a convenience to the Client. RiskCheck shall not be responsible for errors, omissions or negligence by those
parties in carrying out their work. These will be the responsibility of the subconsultant and contractors retained
for completion of the project. The Client indemnifies RiskCheck from all such claims associated with the work
carried out by subconsultant and contractors.

RiskCheck Environmental Ltd. O Check Project No. 28726



APPENDIX B

RISK CHECK REPORT:

2019 ANNUAL ASBESTOS CONTAINING MATERIALS REASSESSMENT



B Sernifler M"b

HBS

Harris Building Science inc.

ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTIGATION REPORT

ASBESTOS CONTAINING SPRAYED-
ON ACOUSTIC TEXTURE COATINGS

City of Sault Ste. Marie

PUBLIC LIBRARY

50 EAST ST.
SAULT STE. MARIE - ONT.

FINAL REPORT

APRIL 2010




|

‘s3nmelr inode|
pue voneson Surdweg - | 7 ¥Ipisddy o Jaya1 aseayd ‘vendunasap ay woy suoneso] asiaaud 3 33U
04, “TF 9[qEL SULMO[[O} MU Ul P2JOU 5] uonsanb uj [BLIMEW 14} 30 UOHIPUOD [e3ISAYd pue uoned0| astoasd Sy,

‘s3u1[123 |943] 39m0] JO FuriaA00 ureaq Joo(j Jaddn o) uo S8 ‘[jEMAIP J0 (SSuljten Jauco
mo| vase Amiql| urew Jaddn) 21910000 1aa0 parpdde s1 pus *, 8/¢ xosdde Jo ssamjonp e Juasaid sBaIR 15O
“paysiuy pue uo pasesds 1o parjdds [amon 1oqNe SBM [BLISJRW fF 18Y) PA[EAAAI UONBUTIIEXD Pa{iE)ap MO

'SINsaY 152 — T# I[qe], uo

umoys are Funydums jo sad£) omi i JO SYNSIY “SPa ARG pup 2urzo3op ‘toNsi4 olpny ‘c4 oM fois

‘wooy L1015 A Ul uayE) asam sajdurss 11 Jualque *Af[ruoNIppY "uonongsuod [sumdiio ot Suunp paydds

sem Jai5e[d DPSNOIR S19ym snonEoof a1 Aruapt Apanisod o1 pajanpuos sem Juydums [eusEw Yynq pus
‘pateSnsaaus aiom SuIp[ing 21 Jo seare |8 ‘feuaiEWw o) Jo torsodios pur Jua)Xa Y} PUBISIIPUT JaNAq O,

"QIRHSGNS YY) UI0L] UOTRUIIE|-IP $I]8I[20I8

Srom PISEIIt WEHNSAL AY) PUB JUSQJI05qB 10U 1] SB (5E3] JaIBm Wol) — 1) Jalem o) Ajeanedau

sjasar ose uomsodwios s3] 1209 amxs) ueyg 2aed pided alous v je pue ‘NBIOLIANIP Ajrunieu [im snsed
2MISNOTY “[BLIAIBLT JAPULG B SB ‘S, 0861 A{ee ay) [uun dn sojsagse paurmuod A[uounuod J3se[d snsnody

"ATRiqI] AU Ul PUMQJ Sf 1} 99U SUOIEI0] s ul Juasald S1 41 LYm UosEal S1jl Aj9Y!] SR (UsITBRNUANE

pumos) Jaisuyd onsnooe i punoj ssredoad ogroads 9y g, 'ONSS] UB ST £100]] 222M]2q UOISSIWSURY PUNOS

10 *pannbau s1 £orarid Jo [9A9] dwos ‘aoejd Fuiym 21w SUOISSNISIP AIDYM SBIIR U UIYO punoy s1 1t *sausdosd

1ONS (1A "SHPARM PUNOE J23]J01 UBG ORI ‘GIOSqR [[34 11 St UOISSTWISURN 510U usdwmp o) posn sem Japsopd

aysrosy ‘() [eas 01 Japio ug Sunuted spduns 6) SPOUMSWMIND IWOS JIPEN JJqEUSIE S| PUR ‘SAIQT SOISH|SR o1

spuIq 1anaq 18y Auadoud J9pIey B SBY YdIYM) J9N8] 3 et I|qBLY SILI0DIq AjISES al0ul pur 1oYos A|[eiausd

s1 yoIym “TIISEd a1sn038,, ue Si )1 18y ul ‘sesodind onomsae Jo Afjrisuad pasn (3unted woadod) 802
1osed pakeids SuTureIu03-50152GSE UOUNLIOD SI0MW DY) WOY SISEIP Juasald (euajew uo-pakeds ay],

*SMO[0] SB JIULN] JUSWITIOD UEd 9 “ASAING SO1S3GSY ROOT 3 Ul Julpimg g
ut paynuapl 1202 smseyd Suyoa Sunmuos-soisqse uo-pakesds ou JO LONEANSIAUT WIIU MO 0) JaYHN ]

HEr N i

LIHOdHA TVNIA

SONITIID
IV 931Sv'1d D115100V NO-GZAVUdS DNINIVINODI-SOISAd5Y 4O NOILVOILSTANI

AUVUart oriand 2y

€€ V9d
ouRug ‘a!.luw 218 Jnes

105 1587 05

SR NN JO 10)INT0TD

0107 TI4dV 80 [eduussoy YIqeAT S

Iry W
ouBuQ ‘NIBg
LS10°T6L (S0L) *X VA 38| IBPSUOT TE

£IS0-26L (SO0 1AL DU 2OUIIIS Suippng SUIDE  weosoRe@gpspny



TABLE #1 - MATERIAL LOCATION SUMMARY

ROOM LD, CEILING MATERIAL CONDITION COAMIMENTS
LOWER FLOOR
|_Admin. Arca Lay-in tile over upper floor conc. deck
Office 1 Lay-in tile aver upper floor conc. deck Lath and plaster in ceiling cavity*
Office 2 Lay-in lile over upper floor conc. deck
Office 3 Lay-in tilc over upper floor conc. deck
Computer Room Lay-in lile over upper floor cone. deck Lath and plaster in ceiling cavity
| Office § Lay-in tile over upper floor conc. deck
Office § Lay-in tile over upper floor conc. deck
Roard Room Lay-in tile aver upper floor coae. deck Lath and plaster in ceiling cavity
Admin. Area 2 Lay-in tile over upper floor conc. deck
Supplies Lay-in tile over upper floor conc. deck
Archives Storage 3 Acoustic Plaster Good 20-30% usbcstos substrale
Staff Hall #2 Acoustic Ploster Damuged
Mending Room Lay-in tile aver upper Ooor conc. deck
Staff Hall #3 Acoustic Plaster Damaged
Story Room Acoustic Plaster Fair 20-3(» ashestos subsimute
Staff Room Acoustic Plaster Good 20-30% asbestos subsimie
Kitchen Acoustic Plaster Good
Stalf Storage Acoustic Plaster Good
Work Room Exposed concrete floor decking
| _Invoicing Lay-in tile over upper floor conc. deck
Calaloguing Lay-in tile over upper floor conc. deck
Catalogue Office Lay-in tile over upper foor conc. deck
Receiving Exposed concrete floor decking
Janitor Exposed concrete floor decking
Costume Closet Acoustic Plaster Good
Stalf WR #1 Drywall - painted
Staff WR #2 Drywall - painted
| Stairwell 1 Exposed concrete - painted
Boilet Room Exposed concrete floor decking
Electrical Room Exposed concrete floor decking
Friends Bookstore Lay-in tile over upper floor conc. deck
Lower Lobby Acouvstic Plaster Good 20-30% nsbestos substrate
Conservation Roem | Acoustic Plester Good
Dungeon Concrete - unfinished
Elevator Concrete - unfinished
Sump Room Concrete - unfinished
Public WR — Male Drywall - painted
Public WR —TFemale | Drywall - painted
MAIN FLOOR
Main floor area - all Acoustic Plaster on structural roof beams Damaged Low areas at comners severely damaged
Study Aren Lay-in tile over open metal roof pan Plaster coat at short entry hallway
Study Area Office Lay-in tile over open metal roof pan

* . the purpose of sheets of wire lath adhered to the underside of the concrete ceiling (main flocr) covered with cement and
finished with a troweled-on plaster coat is undetermined, but appears to be part of the original construction. The maicrial is pon-

ssbestos



SOLSYASVY-NON S1 200714 ¥IMOT FHL 40 SVIIV
ANVIN NI GNNOA SONITIED 3TIL (NI-AVTD STV GA04Y QALOALAA TVINALYIA HHL

‘Bupptaa asyof aur fo aoofans ayr uo By aq or faxiy 51 jojsama
Bupona-so1529sT fi ‘0D YoM 0 0f 552320 woiqe o Buiyao aspof v fo lod 4o o Suwoway  f

suoposado 7 ad(] am Supmopof i (€) T

21ed

W $31)S J[ "SO1SIq5R UERUOD JEYR S]BOD 2MMIX3) Uo-paseads (pim preoq winsdAS Jaao pajpmsut surfias
3[11 21ISNOIE 1M SANIARD Ful|ia0 Tuissador Jof wanbal sit uy oyioads K1aa st g/cs 7 uoyomSay
oL DI T TECTTERES ] M EDNTAED SUljiad O 2 10j U moal 301,

‘(uaqeaaad apnb s1 1 arsym ‘siopLuoed Suiping jusunsede ul se

yons) samnea 553189 a3y ul wesaad uaym Aprenonred ‘s1etnploos of NI salunowos pae ‘aArsuadxa s
jusurajeqe Jo adAy suy 1 -(x01se)d snsnose sojsaqse-uou B (s Juswaaeidas Jo yned) ystuy usweucad sy
Aq pamo}jo} 28eurep Fuipien Aue jo vonrinisal uatp ‘Furdelss pur [eusiBW o) Sumjom ‘eals arp Fuijeas
saajoAul pue ‘vondo ue sAempe s§ sumec) am)xa) Jo [eacway Paiensdesus usym usAs a|qissod [jus si
»Seurep sa1em 10 dduBUsUTBW ‘Smdung wog asEe|a 12q) “J2AIMOH "AWN PWDS 1o Furdedsa wog s1aqy
jusaard o) Jueroins Smoq uonemndds 1afeas v ‘vonznsdesus 0} SjqEUSNIE USYO e STUI{I9D [BINISAOIY

“Fuipio
211 30 288 21 YA I5BIIOUI [[IM pasesial Fneq s1eqy Jo Joqumu 1 “adeys pood n Fuiias paFeurepun
R uf usA2 *230J312Y [ "APySis 21=I0u939p AJ[RULIOY [[IM 2MND) 2U) JO I3puq oy ‘s Iaao ‘AjjBurg (p

*SUONIpUOS 7 odA | Jopun aq 1sn saords Yons 0) §59908
1oy suoptojnSay ay) jo 1namasnbar ay snip ‘suswannbal sowsuannew SuoFuo Aq padeurep aq ugd
1) (uzj1a0 asqry  sA0qe) 20vds 3014198 B UL PAIBI0] UaUM ‘SIOURISIINOILD [RUOHMEISUL 10 [RI3ISMNI0D U] (€

“SISGLS JO 3583]ad SAISSEL PAIBIZOSSE R 1M “JOO[] 1)
01 |[B] 03 SHIGOp SUIURIUC-5015AqSe JO Sqr]s SUISNED ‘PIBOQI[BM FIROSQNS ) WO 2jEsRdIS JO HRUTWR]SP
UBD IMIXa) SMIUD 1 *IAISUIIXS ST SUD{BOS 3 J] "SNEXA) S} YBOS-IANBRM UBD HBI] I3)BM 10 J00I ¥ (T

*50J59qS¥ 0) ‘aSBISIP 50155¢56 Jo porrad Lausye] Suo| Sy) 01 0P S[qEIU[NA JSOW I50L)

Fmsodxs “sfo} Japo puw sjeq Aq siseq Jepnal g uo padung 2q wed Fuipleo AP uAIP(YS [fews Fnaey
ss1j1uey Y ‘suonepdde [enuspisas Ul *019 ‘suRA ‘sug Somea ‘aueid FuiBuey se yons ‘Juy1ao o ut
suoyB||EIsyl uLmp paseafal 3q UED S19qY JO SIQUINU SBIBT "PISEIIRI 2q [IiM SI3QY PUB PaqUNISIp 3q [
JapANG JO XLIEW S ‘Y Uead 0) apuw 1 idwone ue 1o ‘padung Sy ‘paystuq 51 Ful1ad a Jasuaym (I

'SABM UOLILIOD [BI9ASS Ul PISBI[aT 24 0) £19qL) 10y moj[e T30 Surj1es @ yans Jo 2ouasaxd ponunuos

oy “1aaamo} “2az[d m 31 3aa| 03 51 Bui|tad B Y2Ns JO Jsumo wr 03 usdo suopdo o Jo 30 03NN
‘SHONIPEOD [BULIOU JIpUN 1apulq ) wog adeosa [[1m S13qU M3 AJ9ANR|SY "UMIXS) 1) JO XLOBW

31 Ul PUNOQ JEYMAWIOS T8 S13qL S0153QSE L], "WONIPUOI POOT Ul pUe Pa3RUEPUN USYM PIBZEY SN
AroAne[al Juasatd 0y paispisuos Apuaimo st jeuayEw Sm|ieo no-pakeids [BoNSNOIE FUILIBILOI-50ISAQSY

S FEEN)

:NOISSNOSIA



2

[

The long term risk exposure to litigation, assumed by providing public services in a location where 2
perceived risk to health exists, whether valid or not. Some of our public sector clients take the
position that sprayed on acoustical texture coat containing asbestos presents a degree of risk
exposure that they are not prepared to accept at any level, particularly when present in public areas.

The actual real-time condition of the coating in all areas, and the impact it may be having on the
ambient environment.

Physical Condition:

The condition of the material is generally good - fair, with the exception of some areas, particularly
where accessible to occupants, Significant damage and friability of the material was noted on the
lowered ceiling panels located at each of the four corners of the main floor area, at an elevation of
approx. 6’-0”above finished floor. Simitarly, the 2 staff hallways on the lower floor presented
significant damage. We also note that the hallways appear not to have been painted of late.

Of particular concem is the soft condition of the material on the four comer ceilings at the
upper main level. It delaminates and crumbles at slight hand pressure, which meets the test for

Jriabiliry.

Ambient Environment:

The environment in which the material is present often impacts the condition of this type of
material. By way of example, low humidity conditions will cause the material to dry, and accelerate
the rate at which it can become friable. Constant vibration of the substrate due to physical
operations on a floor above can also exacerbate deterioration. It is therefore prudent to maintain
humidity levels as high as possible within the MOL Guidelines of 30 — 60% RH for office
occupancy. Relative Humidity readings were taken as part of this investigation, and revealed levels
of only 24 — 34%, generally lower than recommended. LYRASIS, the largest US Library
membership networking organisation recommends humidity levels of between 45 — 55% , +/-3%.

Moisture content of plaster material affects its ability to bind together, i.e. — to become fiable. The
moisture content of the material sampled in the lower hallways was <8% (very low). By way of
comparison, standard drywall has a moisture content of <12%.

Temperatures: Ambient temperatures observed throughout all spaces ranged from 20.9 - 22.2'C.
These values meet MOL requiremenis and ASHRAE guidelines for the Occupancy.

Bulk Material Sampling:

Sample evaluations are accomplished in accordance with the EPA “Interim Method for the
Determination of Asbestos in Bulk Samples” - EPA Publication 600/R-93/116 and “Ontario
Ministry of Labour Code for the Determination of Asbestos from Bulk Samples”. The protocols are
valid for determining the presence of asbestiform materials in a sample, and quantifying the
concentration. Additionally the material can be classified as being from either the Serpentine or
Amphibole groups. The latter present elevated risk to health due to the composition of the fibres,
whereas the former are more easily expelled from the body. The material present in areas identified
as having acoustic plaster coats is Serpentine in nature,

BULK SAMPLE RESULTS OF THE CEILING MATERIALS CAN BE FOUND IN APPENDLY 2.

The sample results returned asbestos concentrations varying from 2.1 — 30.0%. This spread is not
unusual as the material is generally mixed by hand, or differing suppliers may have been used.



"SUOIIEDC] AUBUI U JBLIAJEUI A1 JO UOHIPUOD o1 (um pajdnos
Fjensqns 24 Ul PUNOj S[eLISIRUT S0)SISE JO SUOHRNUAINGD Y1y M Jo Jjnsau e se pasnbaa Suiaq
SP0Jja UOHRIPIUIAL SLIOS JO POOYTIRNI] AR OF SNp ‘WM SITf) I8 papuowwiosas jou si Surjdues WL

*s)uednaso 10} 1LI3JUO0D JOJ 35TIBD 8 3q ARUE S[BLIAIEWL SO1SQSE JO a5Uasaxd oy adaym ‘(Sauqey
s0)53qse Jo suws) ur) Lspenb se {59 1940 swizou0o 21eTnN0 0) 24135 URD SIS L AS010R)SIIRS

*sUqL 1o wog Ljenedss pajmos a palAodsip

sa1q1} S0150qs8 AU pue ‘2dodsoudily LD UB J3PUN PAUILIEXS 218 §2IGI PADI[0d a1 INq

‘WOd 01 Jejiuns 5§ ampasod ueraa)jod ajdures [ “Ne 3 U] S31qY 50759458 JO UORBNUIIUOI [EMIE
o AJ119A 01 pauinbai 51 31 pue ‘ploysang TJOIN Yl JO S520%3 U] S[AAD] 21G1) [®0) s[BIAal Fumysa)

WOd J pasn u2yo st pota sty “sjdures o ur S SOEIGEH [@o8 saynuenh pus saLNUIP!

3 181p I Ad0DSOIDI 1SROUOD) ISBYJ PIRPUBS S1f) WOy SISPIP Funss) i Adodsosoly uo412a17 (010,

B0duEs AV WAL

JUSWIUOIAUS ARIGY] B Ul pUNo) Ajjeuiion 358 yarym (1aded) ssojnjjas
31w s19q1) 1) JO IWOS JBY) PoolE[axI| Fuons e 51 a1 ‘wifLio Jo ssa|paedal ‘maqf jo sadfy 1TV
sagnuapt Junsa) I sy ° UElS TOW 9A0qH [3A3] Jeul U0 el pdju |nsal Ay,

ENIANIJJV NI NHMOHS
YUY SLIISTY ‘NOILVOILSIANI SIHL 40 LYVd SV NINVINIANN SV ONTTIINYS WOd

“UIYE) SEM )1 HOYRIO] Nf 1B
pue ‘uaxe) sdures o) 103 A|uo PI{EA 2I% SYNSAI Y TEYP “I3AIMOY PIIOU 3q P{NOYS I “SINSAS 1591 oY)
jo uoyjodenxs Aq JuowIuomALS atp o asueljdwiod S azijeIsusE 0 WIISLINS UYO ST POIW STY L

-amsodx2 SuroBuo Joj

AUTapINg papuaunosal ay) s1 193] SIE], '22/d TO°0 5t 1weload wwewarege Lue 1aye  2duerea]d,, 10§
prepuwis Ansnpu] 1) 184} P310U 3q PINONS 31 JIAIMOY 'S]aA3| JQEUCHOR JO PIOYSAIY) 3y MO|3q [18)
[0S s3nsaa ajdures 3y} ‘SOISIGSB AR SANL Y JO [{© J1 UIAS ‘Injea S1Y) uey) ss9| FHART ¢ Jo sa1qy

70 122} siuasaud ajdures ay 31 “ip[eay 0) prezey ou ssod pajdures Kie Jo (D)) 1ANRWHUD JIqND

3ad sa0qy) |0 > T# U SUONROUAIDUOD SOJSHGSE TR POUTLINID SBY NOGET JO ANSIUIA OLTRIUQ ) SV

'SUDIIPUO? LIO0 (JuatquUIE) [RELIOU JpUn (SaO1] 009 AJ1ensn) a(dures 1je prepuwms @ o paseq
JUWUOIIALRD UR U1 521q1J 21j13ads-uou Jo [aa} At aiuLRlap o) ‘uoneSnsaawn Aue ur dajs Jenim
ue 58 pasn AJuounuod si ssad01d ag ], *s43qy) soisaqse 10§ 330ads you 51 popaw s 6861 ‘S|
A pansst ‘g4 UOISIAY — (SAIMY . V..) GOVLH POWAIA [E0DATEUY HSOIN - jeootoxd 3y Suizynn
‘ajdwes Jre ue u; saiqy FwAynuenb pue SwAINUaP! JoJ 3MPad01d © 1 ADOISOLNY ISVAUCY) FSVY ]

ufdaes AV WOd



CONCLUSIONS:

Sprayed-on acoustical ceiling treatment containing asbestos has been identified in the following
areas:

Main Floor — open area®
Staff Hall #2*

Staff Hall #3*
Archives Slorage #3
Story Room

Staff Room

Kitchen

Staff Storage Room
Costume Closet
Lower Lobby
Conservation Room

* significent damage observed to low corner ceilings

The spray-on material in the lower staff halls and main floor corner low ceiling areas is in poor
condition, dry and highly friable upon contact. Asbestos content is high, in the order of 20 - 30%.

The finish of the material in many locations contains asbestos in concentrations of approx. 4.8%,
and it is relatively hard, providing some protection for the underiying softer asbestos material where
it has been applied. The low concentration is likley due to small amounts of asbestos material
adhering to the samples taken.

Old water leakage on some structural roof beam coverings in the upper main library public area has
damaged the sprayed-on coating.

The are no areas in the building where asbestos containing acoustic insulation is present above false
ceilings.

The lower humidity levels within the building will reduce resistance to friability of sprayed-on
acoustic coatings.

We are of the opinion that the cusrent condition of the material can be managed by appropriate
remedial measures (see Recommendations), and that the stabilized condition can be maintained with
the implementation of a program of monitoring and maintenance. The current impact on the indoor
environment at this time has not been negatively demonstrated, as determined from the results of the
air testing undertaken.

Allernately, we have found that it may be a matter of preference that the presence of such material is
not desired under any circumstances, particularly in a public venue, as there is always some risk
exposure to be realised, although this exposure can be managed. This would be a client decision,
based on their own unique circumstance and perceptions. We advise that removal of ail asbestos
containing texture coatings within the buildings would be very expensive.

Tt should be noted that a significant component of any management program would be the regular
sealing (painting) of the affected surfaces, and that Ontario Regulation 278/03 Section 12 (4) 2
requires that the application of a sealant be done under Type 3 conditions {(maximum protection for
workers). This also presents considerable expense, though it is not aiways enforced *. By way of
comparison, encapsulation (the covering of the material with drywall for example) is a Type 2
process.

* - Based on a detenmination of whether or e the nestens! should be classifled as “friable™ m ity cumenl staic



35 /°8Q] 29°| "xoxdds Jo 1ydiom jeuontppe sin boddns
Aspq1] 100 pnoMm SuuRY [RIMINNS A SB PIPUIURLOIAS JOU 5] [[BMAIP MOU IRIM UoiDINSdoIUT

"TBHRTEL J{ISTIO0R SOIS3GSH-UOH B YJIM SI0RIINS pajospe o)
Jo Bulgstuzy-a1 IpRjAUT PINOM SIULL, 'SYSam | — 8 JO ANpatas papualxs ue im Juce ‘pannbas aq
A3l pInOM Go 00T 0913 J0 193pnq B ‘parejdiuaiues 3q sfELAlEm 50159GSE T8 JO [2AOWA pinoys

WNOIL L LT

2wy fo spopsad 1of s5203p 0f pasopz Supaq sooff upow ays fo suoyrod up ynsas puw sysa4
9 2q pinom 2npayds TO000°063 29 Prrom uopdQ aaoqo 31 10f 4150 128png pasnbay

"SUDIIPUO3 fE JualquIe

Jo piosai 8 opiacad 0} panisap Jt unfm aq os[e pmoad 3umss nie sausBijp ang “suonemBay

Jad suonipuos 7 ad4}, Jepun suop aq s sredar Foieo auny Aue 1y pue ‘(spdurmxs 10§ s3j0y
13130 Jo Bunoq Jo sTeudss jo SurSimy Aq) sTeLTRWL 31 QIMSIP O} JOU S10}0ROUND / [jauvostad
SJURUAJUTEW 0] SSARDAIIpP pue (sreak ¢ A19a3 -xoudde) Surpessas pamnpayds ‘suonsadsur

Jenute apnjaul pinom sty | ‘RIS JUSWSSEHEL PUR SoURULNITEW J1dads-a11s u dejeaa(]

"sonuadoud [eonsnose syt UIER PNOM
JelIajRW 3, TRL)EW OAISNOI. FY) JO UOHBUNUEBIIP Jayun) JuaAd 03 sUopuod 7 sdAE sopun

[iSTES PUE PIURMOBA VJIH WNUWIUTD € 12 3q PNOYS S3ULIaA0D [[rap Wedq [BIMINgS uep

"allT) B J¥ BAIR JOO[] 21} JO v/ 15988ns 193 a4y, "(MO[oq *Z 295) Swwaq [emIngs
ursus ) 103 pasodosd Yom [RIpatial 21 (L uONIUN{I0D Uy ‘safEls w suop 9q PINOI SHOM S,

*patpdde-a1 2q oo (BRI SOJSIGSE-TOU MISNOOR I[GHINS B ‘[RAOLUI Bod()

‘NOLLYHIJISNCD ALNNOMNd AE@YOL4Y 349 ALIALLOY SIHL LS3DHONS HM TeAcw
JO 2INJBU A1555TTE o) JATAITS [|IM YONS SB PUR “)A15U09 S SIRASNS ISBA M [ STONIPUOD

¢ adA1 Japun * PIAGILE] 5q [BLIIEW ) JE pUaLTLGaRT 94 -d1ignd o £q payaeas £|isea

38 Yans S8 puv 100[J I 0) mof 21w £y amssasd puer Jy31] s A[15ed JjBUTIE)OP PUB 3)goLy
am s14e) [euatRw Yiog "dFewep weoyuSis yuasaud s1awos moj oY1 uy sSuiea Jamo) A

1

‘SNOLLVANIWWOOHY VIYY HOO'Td NIVIA

WRWONAUD AID)IBJSES PANUTILOS B 10j Juswannbau v s1p yew J0u AvWw UOTIPUCD
Juaxmo YEnoy ‘(jeactuzr) B0NT0 FRLIAINE Ue SE 2msodx? jsu Jo voneguiwa jejdwoo
spuRzay [IEaYy paatealad pue [Ba yoq Joj onss] amsodxa ysu s SuiFauwu

SaniAnoe

oy Knumxoxd Jo uoneISpISUed SWpn|aul *s1oqy Jo aseajal 305 erualod oy Swziiqes

*SMO[|OJ 5B AR SUOTEPUSLII0IA MO SEIB[NILIO) Ul P3SN ABY 3 9ouwpind oy

‘SNOILVaNIWIWOOTH

‘preoq umsd4AF ynm TOREEIEES ©) Ajseudordde anow
puodsal pjnom ‘skemjjey Jeis 100]] J3M0] 91 U1 pur Joof) urew aq uo sTurred mof A Aprenonred
‘SRam 13110 M ‘jod0j0id Fulfeas @ 0) 3|qRUAURY 3 ABWI SBAIY JLOS JEI PAUTULINID SATY 3



LOWER LEVEL RECOMMENDATIONS:

We recommend that the exposed ceiling greas in both Staff Hallways be enclosed by the following
method, under Type 2 conditions:

- Seal (encapsulate) all exposed surfaces
- provide a tayer of 3/8” drywall, finished to suit client requirements

The balance of the ceilings in question should be HEPA vacuumed and sealed with an approved
sealer, under Type 2 conditions.

Required Budget Costs* for the above Option would be 326,000.08. Schedule would be 10 davs.

* _ cuimaied conls inchude project design, teodaing, menagement, impection s (esting regimens. Al eosts ars Class “C™ sstimates and laciude & 10% contingeicy
allovwance.

RELATED RE ENDATION:

Humidity levels throughout the building were observed to be lower than recommended. We suggest
that additional investigation be undertaken te determine how best to mitigate the problem. Primary
humidification is provided by two NORTEL dri-steam systems, controlled by duct mounted
humidistats. Adjustement can be made to the systems. The Engineers retained to develop the
proposed Boiler replacement could easily address this issue at modest additional cost

A detailed roof inspection should be conducted to ensure that any potential issues regarding further
roof leakage are addressed. The inspection should be undertaken by an accredited inspection firm,
end costs of approx. $2,000.00 could be anticipated.

1 rv ns:

During the course of our investigation, the following related issues were noted, and are provided
herein for information purposes only:

1. Friends Bookstore — the return air grille in the ceiling is greatly undersized. Replacement with a
24 x 24" egg-crate style grille will greatly improve circulation and improve system efficiencies.

2. The cap of the main boiler vent on the roof is missing (found laying on ground). This cap should
be replaced to prevent moisture from entering the venting and resultant rusting.

Trusting the above meets your requirements at this time. Please feel free to contact us with any further
questions or queries regarding this Report.

THANK YQU

Da

Harris

Hi Building Science Inc.

AVOWH



(Z4 TIVH 44VIS)
HNLLYOD HALSY'Td OL IDVIAVA TVOIJAL HOOTA HAMOT — AVAATIVH J4VLES TYIIHAL

ADYHVAT HALVM A€ DNILLYOD JOVIWNVA TVOISAHd 3LON
HHMLXAL OL 3DVYA — ONITIED HOO0'Ed NIVIN SONI'TIED HANYOD MOT HOOTA HAddN TVIIJAL

[}
[}

ONIQavI2 QRO ONITIAD /
10Nd/INV3IE TVELLINWLS 4004 40014 HaddN WOOHAIVOH JAONY LYOD HILSVId ¥

£ v \gcud

/
SAONTHIAHY TANLOId TVLID] ?rﬂ'a‘?o@
01



